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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | would like to present the annual report of
G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

RESULTS
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The audited consolidated loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2024 was approximately HK$6.2 million (2023:
approximately HK$21.6 million). Loss per share based on
1,946,314,108 ordinary shares in issue amounted to
HK$0.32 cents (2023: HK$1.11 cents).

DIVIDEND

EECE R R TERKEEE2024F38
31H IEFEATA AR EIRL S (20234 : ) ©

e 4e)E

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$NiIl).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$49.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$4.4
million or 9.7% from last year’s consolidated revenue of
approximately HK$45.2 million. The net loss for the year
amounted to approximately HK$6.2 million compared to
last year’s net loss of approximately HK$21.6 million.

Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong

The Group is mainly engaged in the operation of
Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong which specialises in
Chiu Chow cuisine. The improvement in revenue was
mainly attributable to the double-digit growth in
turnover in the first half of the financial year as the
business rebounded from a low base last year. The
restaurant business improved following the easing of the
COVID-19 situation and the progressive relaxation of the
social distancing measures since the beginning of 2023.
In addition, the resumption of local and overseas tours
had brought a positive impact on the corporate and
tourist businesses. The Group's turnover for the first half
of the year under review was approximately HK$24.4
million, representing an increase of approximately
18.4% or HK$3.8 million compared to the last
corresponding period.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
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Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong (Continued)

The Group’s revenue for the second half of the year
under review was approximately HK$25.2 million which
was slightly better than the last corresponding period’s
revenue of approximately HK$24.6 million. The revenue
growth during this period was limited by (i) the more
challenging operating environment; (ii) the restaurant
patrons being more budget-conscious; (iii) a succession
of extreme weather events from September to October
2024 and (iv) the decline in local consumption as the
number of Hong Kong residents travelling overseas
continued to exceed the number of inbound tourists
especially during public holidays.

PROSPECTS
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The impacts of COVID-19 on the food and beverage
(F&B) industry have been phenomenal and extend
further to the post-pandemic period. Hong Kong has
been experiencing a resurgence of revenge tourism and
a surge in cross-border travels leading to a drop in
demand for local F&B services. The significant changes in
day-to-day lifestyle; workdays and local consumption
behaviors all posting direct impacts on the local F&B
industry. These factors coupled with other operating
hurdles such as souring inflation; rising food costs and
shortage in skilled labor imply the operating
environment for the Group’s restaurants remains bleak
in the coming year. Nevertheless, the Group will strive to
recover more business for the Group’s Tsim Sha Tsui
branch following the completion of refurbishment works
in early April 2024 and from the promotional offers
under the 40th anniversary campaign.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

5



6

FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

RE (&)

PROSPECTS (Continued)
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In 2024, the Hong Kong government is committed to
promote events-driven economic growth, over 300
exhibition events have been planned in the hope to
thrive local economic activities which cover the F&B and
the hospitality industries. With Beijing expanding the
travel scheme to allow more mainland Chinese from
various remote cities to visit Hong Kong as well as more
people residing in Hong Kong under the Top Talent Pass
Scheme, it is anticipated that more corporate and
tourism business will be generated for the Group’s
restaurants. The Group's strategy is to concentrate on
operating medium-sized restaurants while achieving
efficient risk management. It will also adopt a more
cautious approach in future expansion plan as well as in
committing further capital expenditure. The Group will
continue to seek investment opportunities in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and Australia. The diversification
into other segments will give the Group ample
opportunities to acquire additional source of income and
achieve a positive return to the Group and the
shareholders of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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| would like to express my gratitude to the management
and staff members of the Group for their dedication and
invaluable efforts and contributions to the Group during
the year.

Cheng Hop Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2024
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Revenue and Net Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$49.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.7% from
the previous year's revenue of approximately HK$45.2
million. The increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to the growth in revenue of 18.4% in the
first half of the financial year. The revenue from the
restaurant operations in the second half of the year
slowed down and only increased by 2.4% compared to
the previous year.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$6.2
million for the year under review, a decrease of
approximately HK$15.4 million compared to a net loss
of approximately HK$21.6 million for the last
corresponding year. The significant decrease in net loss
was mainly due to the decrease in non-cash impairment
losses of approximately HK$7.5 million and HK$4.6
million and the decrease in depreciation of
approximately HK$2.2 million and HK$1.2 million on the
Group's right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment respectively.

Gross Profit

The increase in gross profit of approximately HK$4.2
million from approximately HK$31.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$35.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024 was in line with the
increase in turnover and the improvement in gross profit
margin.

Other Income and Other Loss

The decrease in other income and other loss of
approximately HK$2.0 million from approximately
HK$3.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$1.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2024 was the combined effect of the decrease of
approximately HK$2.3 million subsidies granted by the
Hong Kong Government; the increase in interest income
of approximately HK$0.2 million and a decrease in
foreign exchange losses of approximately HK$0.1
million. The COVID-19-related rent concessions of
approximately HK$1.1 million (2023: approximately
HK$1.1 million) received by the Group were recognised
as other income in the year under review.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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Staff Costs

Total staff costs were approximately HK$23.4 million for
the year under review, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.9 million from the previous year’s
staff costs of approximately HK$22.5 million. The
increase in staff costs was partly due to the additional
provision for long service payment of approximately
HK$0.4 million and the additional costs on hiring casual
workers and on offering pay rise to retain permanent
staff for the year under review.

Lease Rentals and Related Expenses

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's lease
agreements resulted in the recognition of short-term
lease rentals of approximately HK$5.6 million (2023:
approximately HK$4.8 million); no depreciation of
right-of-use assets (2023: approximately HK$2.2 million)
and interest expenses on lease liabilities of
approximately HK$0.5 million (2023: approximately
HK$0.6 million) for the year under review. The increase
in short-term lease rentals was mainly attributable to the
rental increment for our Tsim Sha Tsui branch.

Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment
and Right-of-Use Assets

There was no impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets for the year under
review. In the last corresponding year, after considering
the prospects of the Group’s restaurant operations and
the uncertainties casted on the Group's future cash
flows stream, the management had adjusted the cash
flow forecast of the Group and adopted a more prudent
view on the business growth resulting in the recognition
of approximately HK$7.5 million and HK$4.6 million
non-cash impairment losses on the Group's right-of-use
assets and the property, plant and equipment
respectively.

Other Operating Expenses

The increase in other operating expenses of
approximately HK$0.9 million from approximately
HK$12.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$13.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2024 was mainly attributable to (i) the
year-on-year increase in cleaning costs of approximately
HK$0.4 million; (ii) the increase in building management
fees and rates of approximately HK$0.2 million; (iii) the
increase in utilities costs of approximately HK$0.2 million
and (iv) the increase in credit card commission of
approximately HK$0.1 million.

2023/24 Annual Report %
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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Capital Expenditure

The increase in property, plant and equipment was
mainly attributable to the leasehold improvement of
approximately HK$1.2 million for the Group’s Tsim Sha
Tsui branch. Depreciation would commence following
the completion of the works in early April 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong

The revenue from the Group's restaurant operation
amounted to approximately HK$49.6 million for the year
under review, representing an increase of approximately
HK$4.4 million from previous year.

April 2023 to September 2023

The revenue of the Group for the first half of the year
under review was approximately HK$24.4 million,
representing approximately 18.4% or HK$3.8 million
increase from the last corresponding period. The
rebound in revenue was due to the low base of revenue
in April 2022. Following the gradual easing of social
distancing measures beginning in late April 2022, the
Group’s restaurant operation was able to resume its
normal operating hours and seating capacity. Despite
this, the growth of business remained slow in 2023 as
many residents travelled abroad over the Ching Ming
Festival and the long Easter weekend. Similarly, the
“golden week” Labour Day holiday in May saw a higher
number of outbound travellers compared to inbound
travellers from mainland China. In September, the
Group's restaurant business was significantly disrupted
by several extreme weather events which began with the
strike of Typhoon Saola during the first two days of
September, followed by the once-in-500-years torrential
rainstorm starting from 7 September 2023, which led to
severe flooding, landslides and extensive damage to
infrastructure across Hong Kong. As a result, the Tsim
Sha Tsui branch had to be closed for three days and the
operating hours of the Kwun Tong branch had to be
shortened. While the business improved during the
Mid-Autumn Festival period, the revenue lost in early
September due to the extreme weather conditions
partially offset the gains.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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October 2023 to March 2024

The revenue of the Group for the second half of the
year under review was approximately HK$25.2 million,
representing approximately 2.4% or HK$0.6 million
increase from the last corresponding period. The
extreme weather continued to affect the revenue in
October as the severe Typhoon Koinu which hit Hong
Kong on 8 and 9 October 2023 brought record high
rainfalls and caused widespread flooding across the city.
The Tsim Sha Tsui branch’s operation was suspended for
another day. Despite the dip in revenue in October, the
restaurant business picked up in the month of November
and December attributable to higher revenue from the
tour business and more corporate functions. However,
the drop in demand for annual and reunion dinners over
the festive season had an adverse impact on the Group's
revenue. During the eight-day Lunar New Year long
holiday, the outbound travellers far exceeded the
inbound tourists further hindered the growth in the
Group’s revenue with revenue reaching only 65% of
pre-COVID time for the Tsim Sha Tsui branch.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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The Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$15.8 million as at 31 March 2024. As
the Group had no bank borrowings, the Group’s gearing
ratio was zero (defined as total bank borrowings divided
by total assets) as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.

With the cash generated from the Group’s operations in
its ordinary course of business; the funding support from
one of the Directors and the existing unutilised banking
and credit facilities, the Directors consider that the
Group has sufficient working capital for its operations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

HRAAEEEEEBAEONHEE K
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Most of the Group’s sales, purchases, bank and cash
balances from the restaurant operations are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
certain bank deposits which are denominated in
Australian dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi.
The management would closely monitor such risk and
would consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

H E2024F3A31H  AEBREE KN
RETME -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group had approximately 90
staff. Total staff costs including directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$23.4 million (2023:
approximately HK$22.5 million) for the year under
review.

Review of the employees’ remuneration packages is
normally conducted annually and as required from time
to time. The salary and benefit levels of the Group's
employees are competitive and individual performance is
rewarded through the Group’s bonus scheme. Other
benefits including medical coverage and mandatory
provident fund scheme are also provided to employees.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
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The Group strives to generate positive return to preserve
values of shareholders through its sustainable business
development. For the Group’s traditional business, the
Group will try to seek growth and higher returns by
offering more innovative products and/or services to
customers, to implement more stringent cost control
measures and to apply and manage resources as
effectively as possible. In order to further enhance the
value of the Group and to achieve higher returns to the
shareholders of the Company, the longer-term approach
is to expand the income source through business
diversification. The aim is to maximize the overall returns
to the shareholders of the Company in the long run by
identifying and selecting new business opportunities
which are of great potential and include them in the
Group's existing business portfolio.

OUTLOOK
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The restaurant business will continue to serve as the
Group’s core operation. It is anticipated that the
leasehold improvement works for the Tsim Sha Tsui
branch will help to generate more revenue for the
Group. However, the continued growth in outbound
travellers to the Greater Bay Area during weekends and
school holidays; rising food and service costs as well as
the shortage of skilled labour in the Chinese restaurant
industry imply that the outlook remains challenging.
Nevertheless, the Group will continue to (i) monitor its
operating costs closely; (ii) adopt a more cautious
approach when committing to further capital
expenditure; and (iii) review and revise its business
strategies regularly, with the aim to better positioning
itself to face the upcoming challenges and capture new
investment opportunities as they arise. Moreover, the
Group has been actively seeking suitable investment
opportunities for business diversification. The Group will
explore into different industry sectors so as to expand
and diversify the scope of the Group’s business.
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The Board acknowledges the importance and benefits of
good corporate governance and strives to manage the
Company and the business in accordance with the
guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) for effective corporate
governance emphasising transparency, fairness, integrity
and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate
governance code. The Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2024 except for code provision C.2.1 in
respect of the role separation of the chairman and the
chief executive and code provision C.3.3 in respect of
the letters of appointment for directors.

Code provision C.3.3 sets out that issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
certain Directors. All Directors are, however, required to
refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and
“Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent
Non-Executive Directors” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in performing their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. In the opinion of the
Directors, this meets the objective of the code provision
C.3.3.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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The Board currently comprises four executive Directors
and four independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Executive Directors

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LAW Toe Ming

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny

LAW Kwok Tai (appointed on 19 June 2024)

With effect from 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Kwok Tai was
appointed as an INED. Mr. Law Kwok Tai had obtained
the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules on 19 June 2024 and confirmed that he
understood his obligations as a Director of the
Company.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita
and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily are sisters and are daughters
of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, the chairman and managing
director of the Company. Save as aforesaid, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationship with each other.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

FMEEEARREREFAE LWERE
REFEEL - REARRARAE &
REREAFAGE =02 —MEF (3
MEABTR=_NEE AAKEKEOE
POR=ZD2Z—WAR) BWmERET H
BUEFEEELE=-_FRE—R- At
ERHERANBRREFARG L BEER
£ BEEXRTREBRLLESHERE
EFERB MAASABXLINAERL
FRE B EE -

HE2024F3A31HIEFEE » KAFIETT
THRESFEEEZL —RABRERE - K
EFeXREMNBEALBEBROT

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings. In
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai,
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily and Mr. Law Toe Ming will retire
from the office of Director by rotation and, being
eligible, only Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily will offer herself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there were five
Board meetings and one general meeting held.
Individual attendance of each of the Board members is
as follows:

HE=R
Attendance
EEg BREXE
Board General
EEpE Name of Director Meeting Meeting
5 1 CHENG Hop Fai 2/5 1/1
B = B CHENG Pak Ming, Judy 2/5 1/1
B0 3 8 CHENG Pak Man, Anita 2/5 1/1
BB CHENG Pak Lai, Lily 2/5 1/1
#BH LAW Toe Ming 5/5 1/1
HER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 5/5 1/1
RAE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 5/5 1/1

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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The members of the Board are experienced individuals
having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies. The Directors are
collectively responsible for formulating and
implementing the Group’s strategies and policies,
monitoring the performance of the Group and reviewing
the corporate governance practices. The mix of
professional skills and experience of the INEDs is an
important element in the proper functioning of the
Board. Their participation in Board and committee
meetings brings independent judgment and helps to
ensure that adequate checks and balances are provided
and that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. Directors have full access to board papers and
related materials, and appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. The
Directors can also obtain independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense if they require it. The
Board delegates the day-to-day operation and
administration to the management.

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules in maintaining at all times sufficient
number of INEDs on the Board including an INED with
professional accounting and financial qualifications. The
Company has complied with rule 3.10A since 1
December 2012 and has INEDs representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company considers all of
the INEDs are independent and has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are given equal
opportunity and channels to communicate and express
their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in
order to make informed decisions. All Directors also have
access to the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”).
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An agenda and accompanying Board/committee papers
are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notices in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees with sufficient details recorded of the
matters considered by the Board and Board committees
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
the Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
the Directors.

The chairman of the Board holds meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the
involvement of other Directors at least annually to
discuss any issues and concerns.

If any Director or his/her associate has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board and
the Board has determined that such conflict of interest
to be material, such matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting rather than by written
resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/
her interests before the meeting and abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the
mechanisms have been duly implemented and are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input
are available to the Board during the year ended 31
March 2024.

The Company did not have a formal letter of
appointment for Mr. Law Toe Ming, an INED since 1
December 1994. Other INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Chi
Yuen, Andrew, Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny and
Mr. Law Kwok Tai, entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 18 June 2019, 23 June 2021 and 19 June 2024
respectively. The term of appointment is renewable every
two years from date of commencement unless and until
terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than two months’ prior written notice. In accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, all
Directors (including the INEDs) are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, and the
retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

2023/24 Annual Report &3k
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and statutory rules and guidelines.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue on a
going concern basis. The Company has also received a
statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
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The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of the risk
management and internal control systems that provide
reasonable assurance on the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, effective and
efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. The review also
covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions.
The Group’s environmental and social governance
("ESG") management team, which consists of all
executive Directors and senior management of its major
subsidiaries, and the audit committee of the Company
conduct an annual review of the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

17



18

fla

XERWE

Corporate Governance Report

[

oy B T B A P BRI (4B

~

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are based on a set of policies, rules and
guidelines as outlined in the Group’s internal control
manual and governed by the following types of control
principles:

a.

Organisation — to have clearly defined line of
responsibility and delegation

Segregation of duties — to reduce risk of intentional
manipulation or error

Physical Control — to restrict unauthorised access to
all kinds of assets

Authorisation and approval — to have clearly defined
limits for authorisations

Arithmetical and accounting — to ensure accuracy of
transactional records

Personnel — to have qualified staff to perform
day-to-day duties

Supervision — to observe and closely monitor, to
identify and report on control weaknesses

Management — to maintain overall controls; to
manage and mitigate significant risks and to
highlight significant matters to the Board and the
audit committee
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Company has adopted the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission as its own guidelines in handling
and dissemination of inside information. Unauthorized
use of confidential information is strictly prohibited. The
Group has established procedures to identify and
evaluate events or circumstances which potentially
involve or constitute inside information. Prior to
disclosure, the Board is responsible for ensuring that any
inside information relating to the Group is kept strictly
confidential and restricting access to inside information
to a limited number of parties on a need-to-know basis.
The Group would strive to ensure disclosure of inside
information to be made in a manner that provides for
equal, timely and effective access by the public.

The Group maintains its internal audit function which
reviews major operating and financial control and risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Board through the executive management team, the
internal control team and the audit committee had
conducted an annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The internal
auditors reported directly to the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company and the audit committee is
satisfied that there has been no major shortfall in the
areas of the Company’s internal controls and risk
management systems being evaluated and that adequate
and effective internal controls and risk management
systems are in place. In view of the foregoing, the audit
committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is
independent, effective and adequately resourced with
persons with relevant qualifications and experience, and
has appropriate standing to discharge its responsibilities.
Apart from the annual review, the internal control team
performs regular reviews for all material control areas
and focus. The process involves the identification of risks
associated with each of the financial, operational and
compliance controls, the assessment of risk level, the
implementation of control procedures to monitor or
mitigate the risks and the report of issues to the Board
on an ongoing basis.
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Code provision C.2.1 sets out that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumes the role of both
the chairman and the managing director (equivalent to
the role of a chief executive) of the Company. The Board
considers that such arrangement will not result in undue
concentration of power and is, at this stage, conducive
to the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group's strategies thus allowing the Group to develop
its business more effectively.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
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Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company had received from each of
the Directors a record of training they received during
the year ended 31 March 2024. A summary of such
training is listed as follows:

EIEE
Type of
Name of Director training
Executive Director
CHENG Hop Fai A, B
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy A, B
CHENG Pak Man, Anita A, B
CHENG Pak Lai, Lily A, B
Independent Non-Executive Director
LAW Toe Ming A, B
HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew A, B
YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny A, B
A:  Attending training courses and/or seminars, conferences,

workshops or forums

B:  Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s

business or directors’ duties and responsibilities
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The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 14 July 2005. The principal function of the
remuneration committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, INEDs and senior management. The
terms of reference of the remuneration committee
adopted on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2024, the remuneration committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Toe Ming as chairman,
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong
Johnny as members. On 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Toe
Ming ceased to act as a member and the chairman and
Mr. Law Kwok Tai, an INED, was appointed as a member
of the remuneration committee; and Mr. Yuen Shiu
Cheong, Johnny was redesignated as the chairman of
the remuneration committee. During the year ended 31
March 2024, the remuneration committee held one

ENEALFEBROT meeting to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
with reference to the level of responsibilities of the
individual Director, the scope of operation of the Group
as well as the prevailing market conditions. Individual
attendance of each remuneration committee member is
as follows:

FMEEERENA Name of i E =R

remuneration committee member Attendance

B (FE) LAW Toe Ming (Chairman) 1/1

RIAE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 1/1

HEE HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 1/1

HZE2024F3R31B L FEE XN BN
FTEaREEE (BEES)NFHEIHR
A EmARMEEIS ©
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The remuneration paid/payable to senior management
(comprising Directors) for the year ended 31 March
2024 is set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The Company established a nomination committee on
23 March 2012. The principal function of the
nomination committee is to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board at least annually
with reference to the business needs and development
of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are
consistent with the code provisions set out in the Code.
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the nomination
committee comprised the chairman and an executive
Director, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, who acts as the chairman
of the nomination committee and the two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen,
Andrew as members. On 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Toe
Ming ceased to act and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny
was appointed as a member of the nomination
committee. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
nomination committee held one meeting to review the
composition and diversity of the Board as well as to
assess the independence of the INED who offered
himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.
Since the Board is composed of members having a mix
of core competencies in areas of accounting and
finance, business management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies, the nomination committee
considered the Board possessed a diversity of
perspectives which is up to the standard of the Code
and was appropriate to the Group’s requirements.
Individual attendance of each of the nomination
committee members is as follows:

REZEEREHR Name of HER

nomination committee member Attendance
A5 (F ) CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman) 1/1
B LAW Toe Ming 11
HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 1/1

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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Board Diversity

The nomination committee has adopted a policy
concerning the diversity of Board members (the
“Policy”). Pursuant to the Policy, in reviewing the
Board’s diversity, the Board will consider including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. New Directors, being
individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to
make a positive contribution to the performance of the
Board and having due regards to the criteria stated in
the Policy, will be identified and submitted to the Board
or shareholders for approval either to fill vacancies on
the Board or to be appointed as additional directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists
of five male Directors and three female Directors.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that gender diversity
of the Board has been achieved. The Board will continue
to pay due regard to gender parity in the succession
planning process to ensure that a diverse pipeline of
potential successors to the Board is available.

The Board also recognises the importance of achieving
diversity at the workforce level. As at 31 March 2024,
the workforce of the Group (including senior
management) consists of 49% male to 51% female.
Accordingly, the Board considers that the gender
diversity of the workforce has been achieved.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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The Company has established an audit committee since
1999. The primary functions of the audit committee
include:

(@) To make recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of auditor and to
consider the terms of such appointments;

(b) To review and monitor the auditor’s independence;
to develop and implement policies on the
engagement of auditor for non-audit services;

(c) To monitor the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report;
to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to ensure that the
information presents a true and fair assessment of
the Group’s financial position;

(d) To review the Group’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; to ensure
management has fulfilled its duty to have effective
systems and to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

(e) To consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings; and

(f) To review the auditor’'s management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to management, and
management’s response.

The terms of reference of the audit committee adopted
on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2024, the audit committee comprised three
INEDs namely, Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew as chairman,
Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny
as members. On 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Toe Ming
ceased to act and Mr. Law Kwok Tai was appointed as a
member of the audit committee.
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, the audit
committee held two meetings and reviewed with senior
management and the auditor their respective audit
findings, the interim and annual financial statements
and the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group. The audit committee recommended the
Board to adopt the interim and annual reports for
2023/24. Individual attendance of each member of the
audit committee is as follows:

ERZEENENE Name of =

audit committee member Attendance
HER (FE) HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew (Chairman) 2/2
EIEH LAW Toe Ming 2/2
RBE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 2/2
ZEET BN & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HE2024F3831HIEFE » AR A ZXE
MAERER (BE) M EBAR
ARREM AR RAAEBIRHENETKIE
ERENEMMESOT

The remuneration payable in respect of the year ended
31 March 2024 for audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, PKF
Hong Kong Limited and other firms, is as follows:

BT BT A
Amount in HKD’000

Bt & Audit Fees 430
FEEE Non-Audit Fees 17
447

BB B WS B EMED B BRI E N A The statement made by the auditor in respect of their
FIRES1E57H reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 51 to 57 of
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this annual report.
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governance duties as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and its disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
including compliance with the Code for the year ended
31 March 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

ESAPLZLT RAFITES © 520065
2AT7THRBHERRIWE - BT RE =
2024F3A3MBIEFE - 2&8F EmRA
THERRFIRE °
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Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, an executive Director, has
been the Company Secretary since 17 February 2006.
Ms. Cheng complied with the qualification and training
requirements under the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2024.
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the
shareholders of the Company are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to clear and comprehensive
information about the Company. The Company has
established several channels to communicate with the
shareholders, namely (i) publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars; (ii) posting
of all corporate communications and corporate
information on the Company’s website at www.g-vision.com.
hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk;
and (iii) holding of annual general meetings and other
general meetings which provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management.

Shareholders are also encouraged to maintain direct
communication with the Company. Shareholders who
have any questions for the Board may write directly to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong
principal place of business, Unit 108, 1st Floor, East
Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, or send emails to info@g-vision.
com.hk. The Company Secretary will direct the questions
to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the
shareholders can be addressed directly to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer shareholders’
questions.

Procedures for shareholders to convene and put
forward proposals at shareholders meeting

If the shareholders of the Company wish to call a special
general meeting, it must be convened according to the
Company’s bye-laws. In summary:

(@) Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company can, in writing to
the Board or the Company Secretary, request a
special general meeting to be called by the Board to
transact any business specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify
the purpose of the meeting, should be delivered to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The meeting will be held within two months
after receipt of the request. If the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting within
twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
arrangement and considers that the Company’s
communication with shareholders is effective during the
year under review.
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Constitutional Documents

There were changes made to the Company’s bye-laws
(the "Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended
31 March 2024.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 29
June 2023, the Board proposed that certain
amendments be made to the bye-laws (the “Bye-laws
2023") by way of adoption of a new set of bye-laws
(the “New Bye-laws 2023") in order to (i) reflect the
amendments to Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules
concerning the core shareholder protection standards
and the prevailing requirements under the applicable
laws of Bermuda; (ii) provide more flexibility in relation
to the conduct of general meetings of the Company by
allowing general meetings to be held at different
physical locations simultaneously or as hybrid meetings
or electronic meetings; and (iii) bring the Bye-laws 2023
up-to-date and incorporate certain consequential and
housekeeping amendments for clarity and consistency
with other provisions of the Bye-laws 2023. By
shareholders’ resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 8 August 2023, the Company adopted
the New Bye-laws 2023. The latest version of the
Constitutional Documents is available on the Company’s
website at www.g-vision.com.hk and the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 3 July
2024, the Board proposed that certain amendments (the
“Proposed Amendments”) be made to the New Bye-laws
2023 (the "Existing Bye-laws") by way of adoption of a
new set of bye-laws (the “New Bye-laws”) in order to (i)
update and bring the Bye-laws in line with the latest
regulatory requirements pursuant to the Proposals to
Expand the Paperless Listing Regime and Other Rule
Amendments published by the Stock Exchange in June
2023 and the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules
which came into effect on 31 December 2023,
mandating the electronic dissemination of corporate
communications by listed issuers to their securities
holders; and (ii) to allow the Company to hold
repurchased shares as treasury shares. The New Bye-laws
are subject to consideration and approval by the
shareholders of the Company by way of a special
resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
circular containing, among other things, particulars
relating to the Proposed Amendments and the New
Bye-laws will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company in due course.
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Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, aged 80, appointed as a director
on 12 June 1992, is the chairman of the Company and
managing Director and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng is one
of the founders of the Group and has over 40 years’
experience in the restaurant business. He has been
instrumental in the formulation and implementation of
the business policies of the Group and is responsible for
the general management and strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of Golden Toy
Investments Limited (“Golden Toy"”) and Kong Fai
International Limited (“Kong Fai”) which own
approximately 8.88% and 65.62%, respectively, of the
issued shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng is the father
of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man,
Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are all executive
Directors.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, aged 53, was appointed
as an executive Director on 25 September 1992. She
was also appointed as the Company Secretary on 17
February 2006. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the University of Sydney and a Master
of Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant
of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
responsible for the internal control and company
secretarial functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, aged 52, was appointed
as an executive Director on 30 September 2004.
Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a
sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak
Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from
the University of New South Wales, Sydney and a Master
of Applied Finance degree from Macquarie University,
Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Cheng had worked in the investment banking and
accounting fields in Hong Kong for over 5 years. She is
responsible for the business development, marketing
and strategic planning functions of the Group.
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Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, aged 51, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 April 2011. Ms. Cheng is a
daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a sister of
Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak Man,
Anita. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the administration, financial and strategic
planning functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng had extensive finance and accounting
experiences in multinational audit firm, investment bank
and a renowned chemical company. She holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Sydney and is a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Law Toe Ming, aged 82, was appointed as an INED
on 1 December 1994. He ceased to be a member and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company with effect from
19 June 2024. Mr. Law has over 40 years' experience in
business management. He is a director of Texful Textile
Limited.

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew, aged 55, was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee on 18 June 2019. He was appointed as
the chairman of the audit committee on 23 June 2021.
Mr. Hung is currently the director of Norton Rowland CPA
Limited. He received his professional training in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu during the period from 1991 to 1993
and had worked in UBS Investment Bank as business unit
controller for seven years. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor’s
Degree of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Master's Degree in
Applied Finance from University of Western Sydney. He is
a practising Certified Public Accountant, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Hung was an independent
non-executive director of AKM Industrial Company
Limited (stock code: 1639, the shares of which were
delisted from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 28 July 2022) from 10 October 2011 to 28
July 2022, and FDG Kinetic Limited (stock code: 378, the
shares of which were delisted from the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 20 February 2023) from
1 July 2008 to 20 February 2023.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

31



32

EEZNEREER

Directors and Senior Management

BYFHTES (8)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

RBEKXE 515 N2021F6H230 &
ZEARBUFPTEZTRARBEFMNE
EghEZZTESKE - B2024F6H19
B REEKATAFWEZESEHEL
BEEZEABARRIRZZEEHE - RE
MEXFRRESR ST ESAT  BRM
BER - 25 BRI RITEH S E#E A 825
FIEBR o EMAREE R T EIR EMAYEDT
REARRA (BHAIR :1029) Z 7 -
HMENESEM ETMRAREEZESRE
il e REERBEITINEFR QAN
BE - RRAIMEBELEERR EEERB
E=FWEREMETAREETEMNES
B REABRBEESRINEASS/EITE
FERNTITHERELEN  WAEES

AR RREFFARGAMASER
28 -

BEIZ S AE 5258 0 R2024F6H19R &
ZEABIYFRTEERARAFTMNE
BEENEREZEENE - BLENDER
B RERTREBMEEBA20FLER -
BEERBIMERLEMARIBEEZ T
BABER AR (BMHAIR: 2536) HEEH
RBERRNAME BEERNBE=FNA
WEETEM ETMRARMNEMEERS -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny, aged 51, was
appointed as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and audit committee on 23
June 2021. He was redesignated as chairman of the
remuneration committee and appointed as member of
the nomination committee of the Company with effect
from 19 June 2024. Mr. Yuen began his career in KPMG
and has over 25 years of experiences in financial
management, accounting, auditing and administration.
He held various senior positions in other listed
companies in Hong Kong before joining IRC Limited
(stock code: 1029) which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yuen is currently the finance
director, the company secretary and authorised
representative of IRC Limited. Mr. Yuen did not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the last three
years. Mr. Yuen holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Manchester Business
School of University of Manchester and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Mr. Law Kwok Tai, aged 52, was appointed as an INED
and a member of the Company’s remuneration
committee and audit committee on 19 June 2024.
Mr. Law has over 20 years of experience in the
corporate finance, investment banking and financial
industry. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of Palasino Holdings Limited (stock code:
2536) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Law did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the last three years.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

7oA FR2018F 9 £2023F5 A HifE &
FERETAFEMNERABHRHITES -
I A20155F9 8 201848 A HI M #£ T Im
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H=Z2015F8H HifH A ERNZHER
BAR(GER)BRAAETES - BAEER
200542 A £2006F8 A HAM £ T iR
BaMNERARMBIERIER - BALER
200043 A £2005F2 A B £ 5 5 8 %
BERARAAMTEE BB ASRLE -
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R ERER  SEBRLANEL
o BEEMNIMAFENNARENET BT
Bl FARIEBRLEEBES BN I
R1996F 12 A MSBMEBR AE M1 KX
BITHERELTENA -
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B -BEENTREARSFLRESSE
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Mr. Law was an executive director at Morgan Stanley
Asia Limited from September 2018 to May 2023 and a
director at Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited from
September 2015 to August 2018. From August 2006 to
August 2015, He worked at BNP Paribas Capital (Asia
Pacific) Limited with his last position as a director. He
was an assistant vice president at BOCI Asia Limited
from February 2005 to August 2006. From March 2000
to February 2005, He was at Anglo Chinese Corporate
Finance, Limited, where his last position was senior
manager. From December 1996 to February 2000, He
was at KPMG, where his last position was assistant
manager. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
with an honorary Bachelor of Science in Nursing in
November 1994 and obtained his Master of Business
Administration from Monash in Melbourne, Australia in
December 1996.

Mr. Law is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in
Australia and in Hong Kong and was certified as a
Chartered Financial Analyst in September 2001. He is
also a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

33



34

EEEWE
Report of the Directors

EEENIEEHET2024FE3A31B ILEE
M FREEEZGRABTIERE -

The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARFB—RREERAF - HXZH B
NREAERBRFEPILEHMEN B
% o

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the operation of
restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in Chiu Chow
Cuisine.

RESULTS

REBEBE2024F3A31B IEFEREE
HBENESBEIENAEBRm LEME
mYE &

BEECCFATEZREH =2024F3A
3B FERREAR B (20234 « £) -

e o)

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 58 to
59 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024
(2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

BIECD GHEDD) (BB EGIF6228) X
SHIAE @ HAREEGHET A ENRE -
NERAREBRAFEERNRIRET R
o BREABASERERENEZR B K
TEABAE & - LA R a1 5 AN 55 B R 2R AT B2 &
BRE HUHERENFERNETEDRERERE
JEalam R AT o AR EH B R b E R
BERBEHNGEMBERERMTE &
LN mENEEGREN—FH - ARA]
B AR B 8 Shiwww.g-vision.com.hk K B
L AT viwww. hkexnews hkBI 3R 35 « (&

RERMENBREB RN —ED -

BT HEBAEER

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year as required by schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and a discussion of the
Group's likely future development can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Those discussions form part of this report of
the Directors. The environmental, social and governance
report of the Company which is available on the
Company’s website at www.g-vision.com.hk and the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk shall
also form part of the business review.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

REOBEFEAN REEFSMNEEERMN
AEBYELBEBREERA N ETERZE
BIMERMBAEEEG N EEELEXN
TENBR -
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During the year under review, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

AEBARMEET  FEFMHEFRER
HEGENEREEHNMEERBBR
MERME -NEEFERN AEBEEE
T FPaSHERCELBERLEBRFE -

IEHEEREF

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year under review, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and
its employees, customers or suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

MAEBBEEEME  AEEZAHEE
AkARNEEENBEREESIGAEE
NARFEHEREN19%N54% - AEE TR
ABRFEEBURALDRAEERFERA
BI30% °

FmEE HEENERHEALLET
R 5 (45 3 5 B 0 A A6 2 F15% A LR
HE2%) ¥ 75 A 4 B A AR B 7 R AT —
B2 -

REHRRREKER

For the Group’s restaurant operations, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the largest supplier and five
largest suppliers of the Group were 19% and 54%,
respectively, of the Group’s purchases for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group was less than 30% of the
Group's revenue for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates
nor any shareholder, (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital), has an interest in any of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

ARABORBRERLENAIHEER
AEECENEBTEBERBERENEZER
AR WEREVE MH IR RIE G - ATERE
BRERBREMNTOIREREERE
ERAEEREBRRMRANE T FH
B ERARAEEFENERE HER
ERMETHE ZBMEBERFER—H
T 2% -

ME - BERRE

The Company is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. The
Group has endeavoured to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental practices to ensure the
business meet the required standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection. Further details of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance
report of the Company for the year under review to be
published together with this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEERAREEONE - BE RS
HERRGA M BRENMTIS -

B

Details of the movement of property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

REBEEARN  AEBTEEREEZER
(2023 : 10,0008 7L) °

2023/24 Annual Report &3k

During the year under review, there was no charitable
donation made by the Group (2023: HK$10,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL

726 °

ERE

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

B ZE2024F3A31HIEFEE » KA G RAK
SEEMHBEZDFBOIENEZEE T TR
FETFE27-28 IR AT E B K -

PR2024%3H31H » &NQ A W £ 7] 9k
1o

=E

Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024 are set out in note 27-28 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes of equity.

As at 31 March 2024, there were no distributable
reserves of the Company.

DIRECTORS

RAFERBERNGERHRNESER

BITES:

BB (T EREFAEHE)
LIS

LIS

HAE

BIEHTES

7% 78 97

RBE

EEZE (FR2024F6 A19B EZ L)

RIBEARRRRIABRIES7(NE - BEER
£ BEEXEREBRHEERREKE
THRRBFAE LWERT -BAEL
ERBERALESTERNRRBEFAE L
BEEE - R BEEBRETE RN
E=EUNMELIEFESARKLE  MEBH
EERRETBUIFNTES  BRRBEF
REERBRES -BABEXERTAER
VEEERRBFAS LBE&SE-
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent non-executive Directors:

LAW Toe Ming

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny

LAW Kwok Tat (appointed on 19 June 2024)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily
and Mr. Law Toe Ming will retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM").
Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and Mr. Law Toe Ming will not offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai will retire from his position as chairman and
executive Director and cease to act as the managing
Director; and Mr. Law Toe Ming will retire from his
position as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from the conclusion of the AGM. Ms Cheng Pak
Lai, Lily being eligible, has offered herself for re-election
at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

RIBARRNBRRAMRES6(Q2)IE - EEZREL
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In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws,
Mr. Law Kwok Tai will hold office as an independent
non-executive Director until the AGM and, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

A E LA IS H2023F8 818 #£ A
95,0007 7T 78 & A&85,000/%8 JT °
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The monthly emolument of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai was
revised from HK$95,000 to HK$85,000 with effect from
1 August 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

MR2024%F3A318 EERTTHRAH KE
B8 A FE AN B B {A] AR B A B A9 IS -
HEROKEFTR O ERQBE(ESR R
HEGEH) (TEHKBEE]) BEXVIEE
TRSIEBERMA RN R KB AT 5 3k(b)2 W%
T BREBE(EFRBEIEMN) F3521&
BIEZIGFTIRMNELMAERL ()R
B EMRAIM S0 EIZAESTR] - HE
MARNRRBZFBOT

As at 31 March 2024, the interests of the Directors and
the chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

TAa Long positions
(1) PARBFREEOIE LY &K (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
HE the Company:
L INNE
ERITRARN
BABFI
BEERT Approximate
EEREE percentage of
BOREZME Number of issued the issued
EEnA Capacity and ordinary share capital
Name of Director nature of interest shares held  of the Company
LIFEy BB A
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficial owner 6,900,000 0.35%
BE51E EEXmA (Hiza)
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
1 EEXmA (fita)
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
BH&K EaZmA (fita)
Cheng Pak Man, Anita Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
BAE EEXmA (fita)
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
EEH X ER R (M iEb)
Law Toe Ming Interest of controlled corporation
(note b) 2,000,000 0.10%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

4 & (%)

(1) RARESREE1E T & &K
i ()
fifit

(a) Golden ToyKKong Fai® Bl A &~ R
a]172,869,780M% (5¢8.88% 1 &) M
1,277,168,06 1% (3165.62 %1 7 ) £ A%
3 » Golden ToyMKong Faif i &l & #
EREEBA ZMEGANEZRE
AARBEBLEIENREKE  BIF
BeEiL: BHALXT  BAKKT
REHBEZ L -

(b) #EBEAASKE A FEHEJubilee Trade
Holdings Limited ([Jubilee |) &)1 2 M
# 4% % ¥ Jubilee 5 #92,000,0000% %
PR R -

2) BEEMLAE

AKRABR2010F5 8108 FH 4 8 IR
HEEFE ([2010F 5 81)) - ZerE8R
2020F5A8H B 8 - 1R 5 7202048
ABERTHBRERAFAEBAMNK
RORBE - NARRM T AR
5T &) ([2020F 51 &1 - #E[R2010F &5
S (5 E)) o BRIERIE2020F 5
S8 AN ATAR 1 - & RI2020F 51 2
AMEAE203048A3H - ABFTEIN
HBEENERE Y BHREMEE29 -
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Long positions (Continued)

(1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company: (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Golden Toy and Kong Fai held 172,869,780 shares (or
8.88% interest) and 1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62%
interest) of the Company, respectively. Golden Toy and
Kong Fai are wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts
of which family members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai,
including Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak

Lai, Lily are discretionary objects.

(b) Mr. Law Toe Ming is deemed to be interested in the
2,000,000 shares held by Jubilee Trade Holdings Limited

("Jubilee”) by virtue of his interest in Jubilee.

(2) Long positions in share options:

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme"”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 3 August
2020, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and, together with
the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”). Unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the rules of
the 2020 Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall be valid
and effective until 3 August 2030. Particulars of the
Schemes are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EERRD HEROERESFTHER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

() UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

#e (&) Long positions (Continued)

(2) BIREMITE - (8) (2) Long positions in share options: (Continued)

H Z2024%F3A318 (L FE R #2010

Details of movements in the share options granted

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

FHEARTFESHNERESHFEBH to the Directors under the 2010 Scheme for the
T year ended 31 March 2024 are set out below:
BREHE
Number of share options
#2023% 20245
_ SR 41 REREE  3A31E
BRESEA REAS fTiege TEEe I RAT6E g i RATEE
Expired/
Exercise Outstanding granted  Outstanding
price as at during as at
Director Date of grant  Exercisable period® per share 1.4.2023 the year 31.3.2024
goE 2017%10A238  2017F10A238Z
202510/ 228
Cheng Hop Fai 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
g5 2017%10A238  2017F10A238%
20256104228
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
ga8 2017%10A238 201781072382
2025F10A22H
Cheng Pak Man, Anita 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
458 2017108238 2017F10A238%
2025104220
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
BEH 20175108238 2017410A23A%
20254104220
Law Toe Ming 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
26,000,000 - 26,000,000
it - Note:

(a) F2017F10A23B R FTEREE B (a)
& A o BB 48 5 A2,906,0007 7T °
PR B B M30% M T B (2017910
F238) BIRSERE - IREAHR30%
HR2018F10A23H HFE © HE840% KR
20195F10A23E B - EHE X T HA

RAT RGO TERNTTETT

The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the
share options on 23 October 2017 was HK$2,906,000. 30%
of total number of the share options were vested immediately
on the date of grant, 23 October 2017. 30% of total number
of the share options were vested on 23 October 2018 and the
remaining 40% were vested on 23 October 2019. The closing
price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of
grant was HK$0.177.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

WRe(E)

(2) BRENTE : (B)
Br | SCRT#E 88 & SN - 7A2024F3 A 31
B REB(ESRBEKRGI)EXVIESE
TER8DE RRAREBEERETEITHA
EYABHEAB AR AR ETMBE
EEMRG BERMDRESEST
EMERSAR  MZxEEEA
BRARE(ESR KBEKH) EXV
BT, EBBMAMA R E) R FT
(b)) IR (B H R HIE 5 51) F3521%
BEGENERZM  SORIBZEST A
BB N T LB o

BEROIEZNZH

Long positions (Continued)

(2) Long positions in share options: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none
of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company was, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed to
have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations which (a)
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or (b) which were required to
be entered into the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

B Bl BEAEARESN - ANAE] - EAEM
MEARKZERAR  HEZRARNE
M EAR  RAFERNGRE 2 EEMR
ZHE AEERREBBRBARRRE
fa] B Ath 2 A B B2 B0 A7 3 (B 275 1 JEE ER A 25
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Other than the options disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or holding company, or any subsidiary of its holding
company, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

BREdmE TESERENERIN

12024 Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of

#£3A318 + XA TRE(ES KBS EG) certain Directors, as at 31 March 2024, the register of
FIBHREFNETERREZMET - T3 substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
ATEBAAANBCDREBE(ESLEE K pursuant to section 336 of the SFO indicated that the
BI) EXVELE2 3D A AN RIHEER following persons had notified the Company of interests
ARABBBETERAPHNEBEEZ AR or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

o= Long positions
RNABSREBEC VST TR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company:
LER NN
=] BRITRAE
£ SREEME ERTEERHA R FSN=R
Approximate
Number percentage of
of issued the issued
Capacity and ordinary share capital
Name nature of interest shares held of the Company
Golden Toy BEHEE A
Golden Toy Beneficial owner 172,869,780@ 8.88%
Kong Fai BB A
Kong Fai Beneficial owner 1,277,168,061@ 65.62%
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited ZFEZFEA
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited Trustee of trusts 1,450,037,841@ 74.50%
Alpadis Group Holding AG Rl eEER
Alpadis Group Holding AG Interest of controlled corporation  1,450,037,841® 74.50%
Alain Esseiva REHhEAER
Alain Esseiva Interest of controlled corporation 1,450,037,841© 74.50%
Teo Wei Lee B =
Teo Weij Lee Interest of Spouse 1,450,037,8419@ 74.50%
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FERR (&) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
" (&) Long positions (Continued)
et - Notes:

(@) REBEFHRBAEEN EAmEEETE
{iz (# B Golden Toy&Kong Fai#)100%7# 25)
=5 A Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited#48 &
A Golden ToyFKong Faiffi & L EHEE M
#H1F1,450,037,84 1A AR 17 A #E A i 4 o

(b) Alpadis Group Holding AG (81 & &Alpadis
Group Holding SA) FiEM AR EZ R KA
FNFE 1 AR IR 3 5 I BB 16 01 B 782 7R Alpadis
Trust (HK) Limited# & &% & M # 2 &R
1,450,037 841 ffp R E A #E 4 -

() Alain EsseivafF {EH B A = Z R F @45
1% AR 1R E 5 & B E & 01 8 M Alpadis
Group Holding AGH & #) 1 25 M 1 1R AR
1,450,037, 841 R IR 1A P HEH HEm= -

(d) Teo Wei LeeFEMTBAZTERRIEHER
1,450,037,841 1% I {n /R ¥ A #E 2 Ty 38 A BC
{BAlain Esseivaf) #E 5 ©

Br EXFIHEEEIN EEWTAER2024
FIAZMBERMEMALTEARAR TR
HRMEER DA EETAESRSAR M
ZERDIAR BRB(GESFLRBEE)
F336IF T ARR B EFHELM -

BRBUFATES

(a) Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited is deemed under the SFO to have
an interest in the same 1,450,037,841 shares, in aggregate,
beneficially owned by Golden Toy and Kong Fai by virtue of it
being the trustee of two discretionary trusts which own
100% of the shares of Golden Toy and Kong Fai.

(b) The corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Alpadis
Group Holding AG (formerly known as Alpadis Group Holding
SA) indicated that it is deemed to be interested in the
1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of its interest
held in Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited.

(c) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Alain
Esseiva indicated that he is deemed to be interested in the
1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of their
interests held in Alpadis Group Holding AG.

(d) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Teo Wei
Lee indicated that her deemed interest in the 1,450,037,841

shares represents the interest of her spouse Alain Esseiva.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 March 2024, had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ARADWBEBUIFATESRIELD
MAIEIIBRBEHNFREBLIEERE
ARRIRBABELIFATES I RBEIL
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The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the INEDs are independent.
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EENBEERPOES

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

REBEFERN MEEEHIHEEENER
BMBEA(EER LTRA) ERXAEEE
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EERANRBEERZTHER

During the year under review, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interests in a business that competed or
was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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(a)

The Group has leased from Homley Development
Limited (“Homley"”) certain properties for the
Group's restaurant operations since 6 May 2002.

On 29 April 2022, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of one
year commencing 1 May 2022 to 30 April 2023 at a
monthly rental of HK$240,000 from 1 May 2022 to
31 October 2022 and HK$360,000 from 1
November 2022 to 30 April 2023 (exclusive of rates
and management and air-conditioning fees) and a
rental deposit of HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental
was negotiated with Homley with reference to the
market rents. Details of the arrangement are set out
in the announcement dated 29 April 2022 issued by
the Company.

On 28 April 2023, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of one
year commencing 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 at a
monthly rental of HK$360,000 (exclusive of rates
and management and air-conditioning fees) and a
rental deposit of HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental
was negotiated with Homley with reference to the
market rents. Details of the arrangement are set out
in the announcement dated 28 April 2023 issued by
the Company.

Rentals charged by Homley during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$4,320,000.

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy
and therefore is an associate of the executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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BEEREIRBEERGHNESR (F) DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) AEEB2005F1A3THERZWE (b) The Group has leased from Hover City Industrial
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Limited (“Hover City”) a unit of a residential
building since 31 January 2005.

On 31 January 2023, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2023 to
31 January 2024 at a monthly rental of HK$75,000
(exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined by
both parties with reference to market rents.

On 31 January 2024, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2024 to
31 January 2025 at a monthly rental of HK$75,000
(exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined by
both parties with reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Hover City during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$900,000.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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BEENREARBERGHWER (B) DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(o)

The Group has leased from Sky Global Investments
Limited (“Sky Global”) an office since 30 January
2012.

On 31 January 2023, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2023 to
31 January 2024 at a monthly rental of HK$100,000
(exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$241,000. The monthly rental was determined by
both parties with reference to market rents.

On 31 January 2024, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2024 to
31 January 2025 at a monthly rental of HK$100,000
(exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$241,000. The monthly rental was determined by
both parties with reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Sky Global during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$1,200,000.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Golden Toy and therefore is an
associate of the executive Directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng
Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is regarded as a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the year, the Group entered into transactions
with Hung Yick Metal Company Limited (“Hung
Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick during the year
amounted to HK$492,000 (2023: HK$273,000). At
31 March 2024, receivable from Hung Yick was
HK$40,000 (2023: HK$51,000).

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned

subsidiary of Golden Toy.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(e) On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with Ms Cheng Pak Lai Lily, who is an
executive Director of the Company, for a loan of
HKD26,500,000 (including AUD 5,000,000 and
HKD1,000,000). The amount due to the Director is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in (a) to
(c) above in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in (a) to (c) above and the report of the
auditor and have confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Save as disclosed in (a) to (c) above, none of the related
party transactions set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company
which is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
The Company confirmed that it was in compliance with
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or holding company, or
any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in
which a Director or an entity connected with him/her
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

47



48

EEEWE
Report of the Directors

BEEAEK

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
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No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

REEFERA - ARBHEAAHE R
WHEEE LEXBLOARARD

5 B BUR

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review.

REMUNERATION POLICY
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The remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Employees of the Group are compensated based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The 2020 Scheme was adopted by the Company on 3
August 2020. The 2020 Scheme provides long-term
incentives to Directors and eligible employees and also
serves as a retention tool for high performing staff.
Details of the 2020 Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
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The Board has absolute discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company
in accordance to the memorandum of association and
bye-laws of the Company and subject to all applicable
laws and regulations. The Company has no fixed
dividend pay-out ratio. In recommending or declaring
dividends, the Board will take into consideration the
following factors, including, but not limited to:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) the level of retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(c) the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio; return on equity
and other relevant financial indicators;

(d) the restrictions and financial covenants on payments
of dividends imposed by the Group’s creditors;

(e) the Group’s liquidity conditions, cashflow forecasts
and business development plan;

(f) the Group’s working capital and other capital
expenditure requirements;

(g) the macroeconomic factors and other changes in
business, financial or economic conditions; and

(h) any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate
from time to time.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

ARBW ARSI EREZELEFR
BRRBBENMRE B AR AR IR
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
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Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 March 2024
and up to the date of this report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY
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Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons.

During the year under review, the Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
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The Company has share option scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as the aforesaid, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

ZEER AUDITOR

BEHECN2022F4A21HE EAR R RZ RSM had resigned as the auditor of the Company with
SEMELTS - KIER2ME (BB et ER% effect from 21 April 2022. PKF Hong Kong Limited
FrERAA ([ RERER] EZERZE ("PKF") was appointed as the auditor to fill the vacancy
B AR f 2= - E R EE R2022F5A825 and its appointment was approved by the shareholders
HARMFRIREARS FEARQBRER of the Company at the special general meeting held on
o 25 May 2022.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2024 have been audited by
PKF. A resolution will be submitted at the AGM to
re-appoint PKF as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG HOP FAI
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
19 June 2024
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

RNz EEN 7T ([A1T]) BBt R FE8E
F1IMERHMBEBESEARAR ([ERHF))
REWBAR ([EEE]) WixE B 153k
xR ERBEER2024FE3A831B N EA
BRARK HEZALFENEAERK
HhzmlaX SKAEREHREEE
ReERER UREKEAVBEHRERMT &
REZSTHRENREMHALEER -

KIRE  ZEREVBERREBERD
2HMAS ([BESTMAge)BANE
B IR E LR ([FEMBHRELERDE
ERAFHRIERT BE5EN2024F34
BNAMNGREVBEARRAREHEZA LT
EMFREeMBRARGEBEESRE I
ERBBCAMEHD B BEE KL BRE -

2023/24 Annual Report £ %§

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 58 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FARBFAFHIEREANTHNERHE - R
REAHEGEEMBERRNEARA/ER
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CHELEREHREBNER - X1THE7!
RS ERT FIRM T -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter we identified is:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HREITER
Key Audit Matter

WA &R

Revenue recognition

FE2HEE B RMRMASNERG TR
B EE4() °

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements and note 4(j) of material
accounting policies.

HRNBEBEBRZERA  ATTRERA
HRRARETER -

We identified recognition of revenue from
restaurant operations as a key audit
matter due to the volume of transactions
of restaurant operations.

BE2024F3A31HILEFE - BEEBIK
A#)7349,549,000/8 7T ° KEB D WA AR
TR EARIMNESE -

For the year ended 31 March 2024,
revenue from restaurant operations
amounted to approximately
HK$49,549,000. Vast majority of revenue
was settled in cash or by credit card.
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AITMAHERES ST RETE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RITBEEROWAETHREF B
Our procedures in relation to revenue from restaurant
operations included:

- TERBRAEBRIE  XWRISEISRES

— Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
processes and testing key controls over revenue
recognition;

- RRARE  HEERRNETHMAR  BEIHEE
BE  HEZRERBITRICERE

—  Performing tests of details, on a sample basis, on
recorded revenue by vouching to sales summary,
sales invoices and bank receipts;

- BAEERBANEE: &

—  Testing revenue cut-off at year-end; and
- HITOMMURRF  UEFBRANERMASEERS -

—  Performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

2023/24 Annual Report &3k
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

55



56

B A% BURD R

Independent Auditor’s Report

BB ET RS M HRRAEEN
51E (%)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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From the matters communicated with those changed
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Hui Lai King (Practising
Certificate Number: P03499).

PKF Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
19 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

20244 20234
2024 2023
B 7 FHET F& 7T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue 8 49,549 45,181
5 & A AR Cost of sales (13,807) (13,700)
EX Gross profit 35,742 31,481
Hilg A K E i E518 Other income and other loss 9 1,399 3,354
B TR Staff costs 14 (23,417) (22,458)
HEENES Short-term lease rentals (5,573) (4,846)
e Depreciation (197) (3,616)

Y -« BEKRREZFE Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment - (4,564)

ERAEEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use

assets - (7,511)
HEihziEE A Other operating expenses (13,685) (12,795)
BEER Loss from operations (5,731) (20,955)
B 75 & F Finance costs 1M (501) (631)
G g Loss before tax (6,232) (21,586)
FrEmiE M Income tax expense 12 - (44)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

20244 20234
2024 2023
Bt 5 FTHERT FAT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEBFER Loss for the year and loss
AATRRREMER attributable to owners of the
Company 13 (6,232) (21,630)
Hit 2 HEE: Other comprehensive loss:
TEEFIEE Items that will not be reclassified
BmoHE - to profit or loss:
BAFEE AEMAEE  Fair value changes of equity
Wa(l& 2 ERA investments at fair value through
HihezmElzE]) < other comprehensive income
EmTEHEQFEZE  ("FVTOC") (53) (154)
HE gt B 7R Items that may be reclassified
BwmoHE - subsequently to profit or loss:
REGINETFEEZ Exchange differences arising on
ME W Z 5 translating foreign operations (7) (28)
FERKAHEME2MEEE Other comprehensive loss for
the year, net of tax (60) (182)
EARRRELFE Total comprehensive loss for
THEBEERE the year attributable to
owners of the Company (6,292) (21,812)
BREXRK Loss per share (basic and
BEEE (GB) diluted) (cents) 17 (0.32) (1.11)

2023/24 Annual Report £ %§
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

7 2024 % 3 A 31 B As at 31 March 2024

20244 20234
2024 2023
M 3T FHET F& 7T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
kREBEE Non-current assets
ME - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 18 1,777 821
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 19 - -
MERELS Property rental deposits 1,408 1,369
3,185 2,190
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 519 663
FEUTER SR ~ BT Trade receivables, prepayments
H th & U 5k and other receivables 21 2,338 1,669
MEHERS Property rental deposits 1,481 1,481
BATFEFAEM Equity instruments as at FVTOCI
FHERZERTA 22 924 977
FHFER Fixed deposits 25,500 -
RIT RIS 5k Bank and cash balances 15,848 24,523
46,610 29,313
REBAE Current liabilities
JE T B R e B Ath JE F 3K Trade and other payables 23 9,045 8,074
B —R2EFFHE Amount due to a director 24 26,500 -
& R 7t 5K Tax payables - 44
HEAE Lease liabilities 25 3,108 2,843
38,653 10,961
RBEESRE Net current assets 7,957 18,352
HEERARBEE Total assets less current
liabilities 11,142 20,542
FREBEE Non-current liability
HEAE Lease liabilities 25 4,869 7,977
EEFE NET ASSETS 6,273 12,565
Bg A K {6 Capital and reserves
H&ZIK Share capital 26 194,631 194,631
1 Reserves 28 (188,358) (182,066)
ERAE TOTAL EQUITY 6,273 12,565

R2024F6 R19BEEE e E BA T

JIEBERREE

BaE
CHENG Hop Fai

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

and are signed on its behalf by:

- J=E=
CHENG Pak Man, Anita

Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

Equny

= 2024 £ 3 A 31 H For the year ended 31 March 2024

e REE REfh REEGRE  BRERE ENfE RRER g
Investment Share
Share Share Capital  revaluation options  Translation ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Ftos)))  (Wt2s)in) (Hr280b)i)
(note 28(b)i)  (note 28(b)(ii)) (note 28(b)ii))
Thn T ThL Thn Thn T Tn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R02254A1R t 1 April 2022 194,631 88,794 84123 (167) 2,720 27 (335,751) 34,377
FEREFELE Total comprehensive loss for the
year - - - = = (28) (21,630) (21,658)
BATEFAEM2EREZ Change in fair value of equity
BEIAEATEEY instruments at FYTOCI - - - (154) - - - (154)
BRERN Lapse of share options - - - - (186) - 186 =
EERREY Changes in equity for the year - - - (154) (186) (28) (21,444) (21812)
R202353A31R At 31 March 2023 194,631 88,794 84123 (321) 2,534 (1) (357,195) 12,565
R202354A1R t 1 April 2023 194,631 88,794 84,123 (321) 2,534 (1) (357,195) 12,565
EEREERER Total comprehensive loss for the
year - - - - - () (6,232) (6,239)
BATEAEM2ENEZ Change in fair value of equity
BEIAEATEEY instruments at FTOCI - - - (53) - - - (53)
EEEREY Changes in equity for the year - - - (53) - m (6,232) (6,292)
R2024%3831R At 31 March 2024 194,631 88,794 84123 (374) 2,534 (8) (363,427) 6,273
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

20245 20234
2024 2023
THERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHFEECRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BR T Al &5 18 Loss before tax (6,232) (21,586)
A Adjustments for:
ME - BERREZIINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 197 1,416
EREEECIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets = 2,200
M - BERZERE Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment - 4,564
EREEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets - 7,511
M%ER Finance costs 501 631
A B R R B Interest and dividend income (711) (472)
LEERERRIZREEE Operating loss before working capital
changes (6,245) (5,736)
FERD Decrease in inventories 144 105
FEUBES - FENBREZR M HEME  Increase in trade receivables,
W Fr 3% 0 prepayments and other receivables (669) (313)
JE {1 BR SR % HL At & 15 B3 A0 Increase in trade and other payables 939 2,240
REEEBE 2R E Cash used in operations (5,831) (3,704)
%H EBENE Interest on lease liabilities (467) (597)
Y Giks: %R Income tax paid (44) -
RIZERE < B e HH Net cash used in operating activities (6,342) (4,301)
RETHMELEZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEVE  BWENMRE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (1,153) (801)
E BATF ZR 45 N Increase in fixed deposits (25,500) -
2 U R B KRR R Interest and dividend received 672 433
RAREEES 2R & )55 Net cash used in investing activities (25,981) (368)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

202445 20234
2024 2023
FHERT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
METHMEEZESRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
HENZHAREEHH Principal elements of lease payment (2,843) (2,443)
BN —ZE SR IEE Increase in amount due to a director 26,500 —
RE/(AR)BEES Net cash generated from/(used in)
REFEE financing activities 23,657 (2,443)
ReREELEEER NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
W R EQUIVALENTS (8,666) (7,112)
EXEH v E Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (9) (95)
RAB1BEZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
He&ZEEH 1 APRIL 24,523 31,730
M3A31MBZRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
He&ZEEH 31 MARCH 15,848 24,523
BeRBREEEBEBE N ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
IR1T MIR & % Bank and cash balances 15,848 24,523
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

— AN

GENERAL INFORMATION

REBBREEERAA ([AAF])
REREAMKIAXREERA
A) o H o fift 9 =5 5E #u sk A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda - EFXr EZ XMW B S
P JLBE 5o 2 NH BR3P 0N 22 B & 1B 985 IR
HREERLDIEI08E o KA R ZIHD
REBBERSFBR AR (TR
Frl) MR £ o

ARAR—HREZRRAF - LB
NAZ T BEBEN G M@K M
731 °

RARAREERR REBEXES
5F fift BX 3Z ZKong Fai International
Limited B E&ARIER AT - BEIB L
B (TBx4E]) REARKKE RBARF
AR TS o

mBEE

G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 108,
1st Floor, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI"), is the ultimate parent. Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai (“Mr. Cheng”) and his family members are the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs").
HKFRSs comprise all applicable individual HKFRS,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HKFRSs
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(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

HKFRS 17 and

amendments to

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Except as described below, the application of

Insurance Contracts and
Related Amendments

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model
Rules

the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

3. BRAHMIIREETEEBMBRE 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (Continued)
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements require an entity to
disclose their material accounting policy
information. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’'s
financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

2023/24 Annual Report %R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

3. ERAHIINKEIEBMERS 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
28 (&) TO HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) EREBEMASHERBIUE

(b) Change in accounting policy as a result of
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application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) -
Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in
Hong Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to
employees under certain circumstances.
Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory MPF
contributions to the trustee who administers
the assets held in a trust solely for the
retirement benefits of each individual
employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived
from employers’ MPF contributions was allowed
under the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57). In
June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR
gazetted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the
use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to
offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take
effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance,
the last month’s salary immediately preceding
the Transition Date (instead of the date of
termination of employment) is used to calculate
the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.
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(b) Change in accounting policy as a result of

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“"MPF”) -
Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition of
the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong” which provides guidance for the
accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the
MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong.
In light of this, the Group has implemented the
guidance published by the HKICPA in
connection with the LSP obligation
retrospectively so as to provide more reliable
and more relevant information about the
effects of the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits
arising from employer MPF contributions that
have been vested with the employee and which
could be used to offset the employee’s LSP
benefits as a deemed contribution by the
employee towards the LSP. Historically, the
Group has been applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to
account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost
in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

2023/24 Annual Report %R



A R R MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

3. EAFIRZEITEBMIERE 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
EH| (48) TO HKFRSs (Continued)

-

(b) EREBEMASHERBIUE

(b) Change in accounting policy as a result of

BEMEAEEHB ((HREE]) &H
RUBRBE (RERES]) @i
BENEFERHNIESIME
BWETBREREE (&)

REZLBEFMASHNIES - A
RZBUE - WEHRRTBRE S
MERZBEMNIEBRBHER]
A AE G B &8 E ' E5RH
T A KT BT R X S b 88 ) A A
HERFEeEE - Bt $ELH
AR ERSFEERR] LA
e MEBSEREI9RS
BOLBEM A TTRETNENTHE
Ae-BRmiz  ELBRHRE
BIRE B G ERE 19585 93(a)
BORTE  NERBRE S A%
SRR 77 A 7 # = 48 & AR 7%
& o

A E B R E A =2023F3A31
BIEFEMBERD MRS K
A FETHUARBERRSE
BRNENGTELERREIM
RErBAPHAE AAEREMBAH
(20226 H16H) ' BEHE =
=T AEBI 551957 593(b) ER A 5% BXUH
ATARIZBE BT E R 195
FI3@)BERZBUERTE HAE
NEHRESEREZHNEZSE
WAREKX -

It & AR R B 52022F4 A
B Y 5 7] 7 25 SR ER A M B = 2023
FIAMALFENRERES
BMERBEMNEARE -

2023/24 Annual Report £ %§

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) -
Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong (Continued)

Based on the HKICPA's guidance, as a result of
the Abolition, these contributions are no longer
considered “linked solely to the employee’s
service in that period” since the mandatory
employer MPF contributions after the Transition
Date can still be used to offset the
pre-transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it
would not be appropriate to view the
contributions as “independent of the number
of years of service” and the practical expedient
in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer
applicable. Instead, these deemed contributions
should be attributed to periods of service in the
same manner as the gross LSP benefit applying
paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.

The Group has not recognised any cumulative
catch-up adjustment in profit or loss for the
service cost, interest expense and
remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial
assumptions for the year ended 31 March 2023
as the difference at the enactment date (16
June 2022) between the carrying amount of
the LSP liability calculated under paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 before the Abolition and the
carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated
under paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19 after the
Abolition is immaterial.

This change in accounting policy did not have
any material impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 April 2022, and the cash flows
amounts for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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(c) Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

EREOMEER T

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

BEEIBRARDSGERE REBTEESH
(2020)8)MHEIEET

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’

MEERAIEREBE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants'

HEERE L

Supplier Finance Arrangements'

TRZ A M a2

Lack of Exchangeability?

REEHHBMENRRGELELFANEELE
FgoE &3

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025

€ Effective date is to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all the above amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is obtained by the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and any
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss.

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from settlement
of or retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Furniture and restaurant  Over the lease term
equipment or 2 — 5 years
Leasehold improvement Over the lease term

The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted
on a prospective basis, if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

73



A SRR MY T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

4, BREFTHE (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) & (d) Leases

EERRKE  NEBEFGEER
cRRERHEXEEEE -1
RERETE-BRERAZESE
B Rl B B ) fE PR DA TR R HEHE
AlZeRRBEEXEEHE -2
EEFREREEERMEENE
A Xﬁ%ﬁ%?—%&@ﬁﬁ L=0F-2
FRELAEMNDR  RAES
?I%HTE%°

2#%@/752%7%%5/(

ZZD%/\ SHERBSOMIERE
$El T E TR FEER

/_\/_\FFFEJ meEdkEsEEAEEHD &

EREEANEEERDIERE—

HERDETEARE

EHERRE  A5ERAEM
REEMHEERE EHENS
128 A E R G RAEERS -
GETB/AEENES BA
E EEHEELREYE -

EHEREARL HERAEBENS
RHEEHARNEENKNIRE
R FRXSHEHERSHMX

s (WEEHK S HEE %A R ) 18
EEERAE - VTR EK - M
\Eﬁﬁzﬁﬁé%$ﬁ; A SR
XERAERMNEER THXB%
R\TE%IYHTE’JT“?H??HE

EREHEREN EJrgEP'ﬁﬁ%
EEZLENS BN AR -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s), the
Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less, for the
Group are primarily restaurant, office, director’s
quarter and storage room.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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(d) Leases (Continued)

(e)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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(f) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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(h) Cash and cash equivalents

()

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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(j) Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, such as
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is the promise to
provide food and beverages. Revenue from
operation of Chinese restaurants is recognised
at a point in time when the food and beverages
are served to the customers. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the services are
rendered to the customers at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the services are
rendered to the customers. For payments
settled by credit cards by customers, the
settlement period is normally within 2 days
from the trade date. As the provision of these
services are at a period of one year or less, as
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.
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(k)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to the profit
or loss represents contributions payable by
the Group to the funds.
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(k) Employee benefits (Continued)

V)

(ii) Pension obligations (Continued)

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for
the employer MPF contributions expected
to be offset as a deemed employee
contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measured
on a net basis. The estimated amount of
future benefit is determined after
deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the
Group’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed
to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
directors and employees are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.
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(m)

(n)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured,
at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
loss before tax recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at the time of the transaction does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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(o) Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.
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(o)

(p)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The Group recognises a
deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.
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(p)

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets. The amount of expected credit
losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit
losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables.
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(q) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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(q) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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(q) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

2023/24 Annual Report &3k



A R R MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

4., EREEFTHE (E) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) EWMEERME (F)

(q) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

BHEHBR
EHERBREBABAREN
MR AEER DRAEKEH
SR (BREEBAEENFE
BFACEARERF SHRE
WM E - & XA HE
BRFR - WRPEHAEQE) -
REEBBZHEZEMEE - £/8
ERATREZEZRZER®EZ B
THENERMEEDAREXIARE
B @ WA FF BV TTIR B o (AT IR
Bl #9 5K IR FE B 28 FERR ©

AR EE R BRER
BHEEBAENAERENOM
R OBHOBEBXRXBIZQBRT
MIBRIEE) MENERRER
B - BHOMEMENBREW
AHEEREL#E - WRIE L
RIBEEERETHE -

HREMEENAREEFRR
RESRENAKEENMEAR
BenERBARKEEAKE M
EREREZHNER LR
BERMEFA -

AEEEBRGETHRIAMESRT
BrRERELEE  WEBE
BEABRAREARRLE@SHE

2023/24 Annual Report £ %§

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described
above.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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4. ERSFTHE(E) 4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. The amount recognised
as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affect both current and
future periods.

Deferred taxation

At 31 March 2024, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$252,258,000 (2023: HK$248,599,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are greater than expected,
a material recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which such recognition takes place.

Provision for long service payments

The present value of the long service payment
depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of long service
payment.
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6. HKERERE 6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group'’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through an amount due to a director
of HK$25,500,000 and bank balances of
HK$37,203,000 which are denominated in
Australian dollar (“AUD").

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 March 2024, if AUD had weakened 5 per
cent (2023: 5 per cent) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been
increased by approximately HK$585,000 (2023:
HK$596,000). If the AUD had strengthened 5
per cent (2023: 5 per cent) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the
consolidated loss after tax for the year.
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(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in equity securities. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity rate is decreased to 5% in
current year as a result of the recent
performance of the investments.

If equity prices had been 5% (2023: 10%)
higher/lower, other comprehensive loss for the
year ended 31 March 2024 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$46,000 (2023:
HK$98,000). This is mainly due to the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform its obligations is arising from the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are due within 30 days from
the date of billing.
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(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

No credit evaluations are performed for retail
customers that transact in cash, or via major
credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in
connection with sales settled through credit
cards provider are with high credit rating and
no past default history. Given that these assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit
rating issuers, the expected credit loss rates
were insignificant and close to zero for both
years, and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised in respect of trade receivables

Other receivables/property rental deposits/
bank balances

No allowance has been recognised for other
receivables and property rental deposits as the
expected loss for these balances is immaterial
under 12-month ECL model based on the
Group's assumption on the rates of default of
respective counterparties taking into account
forward-looking information.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by credit-rating
agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

NELHRIE
Weighted
average
interest rate
%

%

FE AN/A
FEAN/A
5.00%

AERNA
5.00%

(e)

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities is as follow:

RESIFRA 1825 2555 ag REE
On demand
or within Between Between Carrying
1year 1and2years 2and 5 years Total amount
T iR Tin T Thx
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,227 - - 5,221 5,221
26,500 - - 26,500 26,500
3,430 5,050 - 8,480 1971
4,691 - - 4,691 4,691
3310 3430 5,050 11,790 10,820
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk which arises from lease liabilities (note 25).
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances.
The management of the Group considers the
Group’s exposures of the bank balances are not
significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period and thus they
are not included in sensitivity analysis. The
Group currently does not have a policy on cash
flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not
significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Except as stated above, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities and the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.
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6. BIEEKRE

=18 (48)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

f) EMIENDE

TREE:
REBHERATENSREE

B EF AR 2 RS
MERMEE — B TH

TEEE:
HEERAGTENERAE

HERE

(f) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets:

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI - equity instruments

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Lease liabilities

20245 20234
2024 2023
FExT F& T
HK$’000 HK$'000
45,693 28,540
924 977
31,727 4,691
7,977 10,820

7. ERMIAQAFEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

ATERKEHEATHE REZ
MEARFZ ST - i — & ER
U B o 5 W5 — B B (AT X A9 RO
# o AT AT EH B REEHAFE
P45 6 (L0 8 PR 0 ) A B B

DR=TABH

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that

categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

FIERBAE

F2E LT AE

FIBLEAE

AEBEER
BE %7 BX 15 19 48 [A]
BEXBBEER
E& 0l jE 5'{ £ ég
EHHmE -

BREIERE AR
SRR E E LA
BEEEIBEEA
BRMBmAE-

HHEEESXERE
ORI N
8 -

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the
measurement date.

inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1
that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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7. ERMIBEAFEITE (E&) 7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
NTEERLEE - Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:
R20245F 720234
3A31H 3A31H
AEEFE ANEEFE
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
as at as at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
E1E EE
Level 1 Level 1
TERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& BA Description
KBEMATZETE: Recurring fair value
measurements:
mAEES AEMEEmZ Equity instruments at FVTOCI
HiEm TR
—FhERES — Listed equity securities 924 977
RAFER  SEEMEMTEE= There were no transfers into and transfers out of
EERsBELAER AEEAME any of the three levels during the year. The carrying
MEENMSHEENEREEAARBH amount of the Group's other financial assets and
B R FET - 4RSI AR R R AT financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
N statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.
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8. WA 8. REVENUE
20244 20234
2024 2023
FE T F& 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEHEETBEEFS Revenue from contracts with
Bk E AL PN customers recognised at a point
in time in Hong Kong
— g R OB E — Operation of
Chinese restaurants 49,549 45,181
9. HiAREAMEE 9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS
20244 20234
2024 2023
FHET FA7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Haw A Other income
FEWA—IRITER Interest income — bank deposits 599 360
f& B U A Dividend income 73 73
FEEUA Sundry income - 8
HEER Rental concession 1,134 1,144
IS 78 B Government subsidies = 2,275
HMEZSHEERNBEKA Imputed interest income on rental
deposits 39 39
1,845 3,899
HittEHE Other loss
FHIE KB Net exchange loss (446) (545)
BEr Total 1,399 3,354
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

11.

BEBRERBKZHAB

AEBEAE -—FUEREEER
b EBEESR-—NRED R &
—URDEERIN BFRERAM
REBREBLRBEERRH D -

RERDEMFEEOMARITES
(EERLERRE)RENEAR  BEH
RRBEMEMLEETRADN - A
g ERHEEENEERE wEMKE
BHMIERPR -

HWEMERNEEEF

AEBNEBEBUNREE  A5H
BREMNNRBERIIFRDEE °

WAKRBIBES - REMEAR D
AR NI R

REMFEEXHT  RBEEFAEF
BEREBAARERIMANIO.

The principal activity of the Group is the operation
of Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong.

The Group manages its business as a single unit
and, accordingly, the operation of restaurants is the
only reporting segment and virtually all of the
revenue and operating losses is derived from this
business segment except for some unallocated
expenses.

Information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment
focuses on revenue analysis by location of
restaurants. Accordingly, only entity-wide
disclosures, geographical information and major
customers are presented.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION AND MAIJOR
CUSTOMERS

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong
and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Hong Kong.

Revenue are generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years from
restaurant operations.

Bt & & A 11. FINANCE COSTS
2024 20234
2024 2023
FERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEBBENNEE Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(K1:%19) (note 19) 467 597
JENEBERAELSNHEEZ  Imputed interest expense arising from
MEBR(H223) provision for reinstatement work
(note 23) 34 34
501 631
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12. FiiEHEH 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
HRAEBHEEMFETEERTA No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made
B A EARE B S TR BEERE - since the Group has no assessable profit for both

years.
AEBENEMNZEMAH B R R ERR The Group's subsidiary incorporated in Australia
25% (20234 : 25% ) B B 3R 0 48 was subject to Australian income tax at a rate of
MPTIS X 25% (2023: 25%).
KEEHMEHERAEGEERRE The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
fth 2 T W &5 2% AT 51) @9 BR B4 B /85 18 41 BR loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
m profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2024% 2023%F
2024 2023
FHERT FA&7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B % B &5 18 Loss before tax (6,232) (21,586)
BEBMNEHHE16.5%  Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20234 : 16.5% )5t HE  16.5% (2023: 16.5%)
IR (1,028) (3,562)
BAZRHFEWANTREEZE  Tax effect of income that are not
taxable (118) (710)
TR MR ERNBRIETE  Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible 121 2,389
AERETHMEEZEY Tax effect of temporary differences
M E 8 not recognised (52) -
AERN TR IEEE RN Tax effect of tax losses
MR E not recognised 1,380 1,921
A LA ARERDN Utilisation of tax losses previously
IR 18 not recognised (298) -
EEMAEAEERKLHM Effect of different tax rates of a
BARNAERETE subsidiary operating in other
jurisdiction (5) 6
gt e A Income tax expense - 44
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12. FREHE A ()

12.

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

EFREHR AEEERYAHIE
/&5 18 #9252,258,000/8 7T (20234 :
248,599,000/ L) © A] AR K 85 K
g Fl| o B PR 2R i FI 3RO B 1S T E
M RAREREERBEE - A5 F
L ARBARIBEEDAEFHEBRL
KRR EMENEHIEEED
AR HA AL o

13. £EEFIE

13.

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$252,258,000 (2023:
HK$248,599,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The aforesaid unused tax losses of
the Group have not yet been agreed by respective
tax authorities. All tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely for both years.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

AEBFEEEBRDHBRA TSR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after
charging the following:

2024%F 20234

2024 2023

FERT FAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

% SR N & Auditor’s remuneration 430 462

BB R EMN Building management fee and rates 4,137 3,925

ERAFEEKAR Cost of inventories consumed 13,807 13,700

e Depreciation

— E - BEKEZE — property, plant and equipment 197 1,416

— EREEE — right-of-use assets — 2,200
BIE Impairment loss on

— W% WERFE — property, plant and equipment - 4,564

- EREEE - right-of-use assets - 7,511

PRAEXERBEREHR Utilities and cleaning expenses 4,621 4,002

2023/24 Annual Report 3R

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

103



Are SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

14. EERABEX

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

20245 20234

2024 2023

FE T F& T

HK$'000 HK$'000

&~ JEAL KOERL Salaries, bonuses and allowances 22,207 21,677
RRE T ET 23R Retirement benefits scheme

(BF7£30) contributions (note 30) 1,210 781

23,417 22,458

AUBEEHEMAL

AEBAFENTAERRSFHA L
o BE=42023F  MEZ)ESE
HEMDEMTISH DA R - H
R A (20234 : — &) AT & % B

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included three (2023: four) directors
whom emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 15. The emoluments of the

N remaining two (2023: one) individual are set out
below:

20245 20234

2024 2023

FHET FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

& KoERL Salaries and allowances 870 447
HNESE LT The emoluments fell within the following band:

20245 20234

2024 2023

A AE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

074 7T £ 1,000,000 7T, HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 1

AEBEEEMEFEARERAEE
MEREESRRRSHMA LA
TS EARIMEMMAREE
K DBERIAE -

EEMEFER REEFNEENE
ERCIE A

104  G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B EMERERAT

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the employees of the Group or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for
both years.

None of the employees has waived any emoluments
for both years.
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H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

=300

BUEFENHFEMU AR

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set as below:

FRANARENBADESHRURBEM X AAERNHE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EXEK
ik B&  BAGEMX EERE @t
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries benefit scheme allowance Total
TAn TEx TAn TAn THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ynEs: Executive directors:
HABE4 (7HEH)  Mr. Cheng Hop Fai (Chief
Executive) - 160 - 900 1,060
gamnt Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 - 378
gasat Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita - 360 18 360 738
gEBxt Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 480 18 - 498
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors (“INED"):
RERLE Mr. Law Toe Ming 1) - - - n
HERLA Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 72 = = = 7
REBELE Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny n - - - n
20245 A5t Total for 2024 216 1,360 54 1,260 2,890

2023/24 Annual Report £ %§
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15. EEMNREANANER () 15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
EENME (F) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

ERARRAANBARESARERB MR N ARKNMH S
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EERR
ik e BHEER FE2H )
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries  benefit scheme allowance Total
ThL TAL THEL TAL ThEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiTES: Executive directors:
BRBEA (THEH)  Mr. Cheng Hop Fai (Chief
Executive) - 240 - 900 1,140
L=k Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 _ 378
gafat Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita = 480 18 240 738
HRERL Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 480 18 _ 498
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors ("INED"):
BERTE Mr. Law Toe Ming 72 - - - 72
RERLE Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 72 = - - 72
REAELE Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny 72 - - - 72
2023F M5t Total for 2023 216 1,560 54 1,140 2,970
RAFEAN TREAZREMRNESEH Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
BNEXREREEMBE (2023%F : waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
) o the year (2023: HK$Nil).
RAFERN  AEBEWERETMRNES During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
XA EMBME - ERARSIEEFINAK Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
MAKREEERER  sSKESERH join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
g o for loss of office.
REB —BEREAESRMEKR A @ The Group has been providing accommodation,
FHENEE - which is leased from a related party, to the directors

at no charge.
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H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

16. DIVIDEND

RAFER ARARIARINHE
IRAERIAR S (20235 : T8 L) B W
& HI R DA SR 7R K 4 & X A R AT A S

(2023%F : TH L)

17. BRE#E

reporting period (2023: HK$Nil).

17. LOSS PER SHARE

No dividend has been paid or declared by the
Company during the year (2023: HK$Nil), nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the

FRER L EEEIEDRIBEIATEE

based on the following:

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is

20244 20234
2024 2023
FTHERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Loss
AAFIRR R E(LEE Loss attributable to owners of the
Company (6,232) (21,630)
B EE Number of shares
ARG EESREREIER M Weighted average number of ordinary
WY E AR B (M i) shares for the purpose of calculating
basic loss per share (Note) 1,946,314,108 1,946,314,108

Bat

REMBEFER - AARNERESRE #

BUHEEETBRK -

2023/24 Annual Report 3R

Note:

Company’s share option for both years.

There was no dilutive potential ordinary share for the
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18. W% - WERRKRE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ERRERRE HENEESR ok
Furniture and
restaurant Leasehold
equipment  improvements Total
FTEL AT TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE Cost
R2022%64 718 At 1 April 2022 10,070 7,149 17,219
NS Additions 801 - 801
R2023F3A318 & At 31 March 2023 and
2023F4H1H 1 April 2023 10,871 7,149 18,020
hE Additions 10 1,143 1,153
R2024%3A31A8 At 31 March 2024 10,881 8,292 19,173
AAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R2022%4A1H At 1 April 2022 9,179 2,040 11,219
FAXW (Hi213) Charge for the year (note 13) 259 1,157 1,416
WA (frit13) Impairment (note 13) 612 3,952 4,564
R2023F37318 I At 31 March 2023 and
2023F4A1H 1 April 2023 10,050 7,149 17,199
FRSTH (H1713) Charge for the year (note 13) 197 = 197
20245348318 At 31 March 2024 10,247 7,149 17,396
BREE Carrying amount
R2024%3A31A8 At 31 March 2024 634 1,143 1,777
RK2023F3H318 At 31 March 2023 821 = 821

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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18. W% - MERRE (&)

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

MR2024F3A31H A EBEREER
RBURBERNBEERRBFERE - b
MEHEEMEEYZE  BE k& RFE
REEEMNIKESE - BEEKIR
CEEBMATKRE S ETENER
FRREREEFENFERAEEME
FeoMBREREEZMEANETER
RAEBHNBEBEMNFIRE EEEXFE
EEMEREXEE AEBFAHITR
i B RIS Y SR B E R RIR
S EE BT RSB TA L X
EETITIRE - ERRAIZREGELES
NEEEKEDLRNRBFHLEE
BERASHEY BEERNRLEES
TREBERATREREEMSEERAE

E}’Eko

K S5 4R 05 F o #0531 BB
B UEBBERT6RERER
S0 TS R ST E M K 8 TR
MR LT RIA © KL ETBBIAM
T PRI -

FREIE AEBEE X E B FEEFT
SREREMITIFEAE10.46% °

IR & & 4 B A A] Uk B & 28R D
HENME BB L& E R RE
EEMREE WO BEE20234F
BABBLEFEMNBERPERYE
BEEEEREAEEENRERRE
#74,564,000/8 7T #17,511,00078 JT °

2023/24 Annual Report £ %§

As at 31 March 2023, the management of the
Group identified a restaurant located in Kwun Tong
continued to underperform. They estimated the
corresponding recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. The
recoverable amounts of the restaurant operation
cash generating unit (“"CGU") have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method were those
regarding the discount rate, growth rate and
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimated discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rates were based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGU operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue
were based on past performance and expectations
on market development.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors over the remaining lease term of the
leased properties of restaurant operation using the
Hong Kong's inflation rate 1.7% as growth rate.
This rate did not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group's operating restaurant activities was
10.46%.

As the recoverable amount of CGU was lower than
the respective carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets, impairment
losses of approximately HK$4,564,000 and
HK$7,511,000 were recognised on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets in the profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 so arising
from the CGU, respectively.
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H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

1. FHEEE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

HEME
Lease
properties
FET
HK$'000
7202253 H31H At 31 March 2022 9,711
e (Kit13) Depreciation (note 13) (2,200)
B (B aE13) Impairment (note 13) (7,511)
7202343 H31H K20249F3H31H At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 =
20244 20234
2024 2023
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

HEEaBEMNFBERAX Interest expense on lease liabilities
(BREMBKBER) (included in finance costs) 467 597
B HHEEHENE R Expenses relating to short-term lease 5,573 4,846
HERESRLBENFBHAM T Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out

32(b) ° in note 32(b).

REMBEFTFER  ~EBHEEETH
EMEEREERSZ -HESRIZE
FE1E5%FFHH (20234 : 1525%F) 5]
Vo HEKREEMBIER iR
EPRESETRAMERMES - &
ErHERRRTEHETAREENE
B AEERBEAEONEE W iE
TE A #) 7] 98 B B 1T Ry HABR ©

BEMEE®RSEN12% (20234 :
NwR)EEBMAEHENRANRE
HEHRNBEENZEFEREMNK -

FREEERETHNFBESRAME
18 I FE ©

For both years, the Group has various leased
properties for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 to 5 years (2023: 1
to 5 years), and have no extension and termination
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

Lease of restaurant contains variable lease payment
that are based on 12% (2023: 12%) sales and
minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over
the lease term.

Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use
assets are disclosed in note 18.
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H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

20. F& 20. INVENTORIES
20245 20234
2024 2023
TFET FBTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Kk Food and beverage 519 663
21. EWRBRFN » FEN T R EAMAE IR 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023/24 Annual Report 3R

20244 2023%F
2024 2023
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

KEBEEKNEWIRI  Trade receivables from restaurant
operations 510 180
ENEE Prepaid rental expense 512 -
R NEENEN Prepayments of other expense 370 502
i Deposits 894 855
H b e W 7k Other receivables 52 132
2,338 1,669

BREBEERASZUHASMERARER -

AR 2 B ) B R SR IR FR 3 B HIH0
BREHBROKREDITWOT

0 £ 30 H 0 to 30 days

Most of the restaurant customers settle in cash and
credit cards.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables from
restaurant operations, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

20244 20234
2024 2023
TR THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
510 180

R2024F3831H  BIEXKHED
#0 HA 1B 2R BB /Y FE UK BR 3k (20234 -

THT) o

AR K A B AR S A M AT
o B D18 38 705 M AR K L8 T
e -

As of 31 March 2024, no trade receivables from
restaurant operations were past due but not
impaired (2023: HK$Nil).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. All trade receivables from restaurant
operations are denominated in HK$.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

2. MAFEH A H it 2 E W3 48 22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI
mTH
20244 20234
2024 2023
TET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERFENEZES Equity securities, at fair value
BEALTRE Listed in Hong Kong 924 977
MEAENAFETEERERNNE AB The fair values of the listed securities are based on
BE - current bid prices.
BEAFTE:AHM2ERESHEST Equity instruments at FVTOC| are denominated in
B A ITEHE © HK$.
23. E R AR H b FE X 23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
20245 20234
2024 2023
THExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETERFK (BT 7%) Trade payables (Note) 2,453 2,516
EstE R Accruals 2,392 2,141
H b FE A K Other payables 382 34
ERNEEKA Provision for reinstatement work 1,218 1,183
FENREAR & (#77230)  Provision for long service payments
(note 30) 2,600 2,200
9,045 8,074
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23. BRI K HAMEAR ()

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Bt

FERBRFIRBE R HRE ST

Note:

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

receipt of goods, is as follows:

2024%F 2023%F

2024 2023

FERT FET

HK$’'000 HK$'000

0&60H 0 to 60 days 2,399 2,459
60 H LA E Over 60 days 54 57
2,453 2,516

REEMHFHRBEHRI0X -

Fr B BN BRFRIG A TTEHE ©

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
90 days.

All trade payables are denominated in HK$.

24. BN —RESENIE 24. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR
EN—R2EEREREER 28K The amount due to a director is unsecured,
BRENRERE - non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

25. HEBE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

REREMNT

Minimum lease payments

BERENRZERE

Present value of minimum

lease payments

20245 2023%F 20245 2023
2024 2023 2024 2023
TR TET THAT FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—£R Within one year 3,430 3,310 3,108 2,843
BR-FEIBAME More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 5,050 3,430 4,869 3,109
BARFEAERTE More than two years, but not more
than five years = 5,050 = 4,868
8,480 11,790 1,977 10,820
B ARBBER Less: Future finance charges (503) (970)  FEEANA  TEENA
REEANZRE Present value of lease obligations 7971 10,820 7977 10,820
W 12EARESEER Less: Amount due for settlement within
NEBGIRRRD 12 months (shown under
BEET) current liabilities) (3,108) (2,843)
REABIAEENSE Amount due for settlement after 12
BIRRERBEEET) months (shown under non-current
liabilities) 4,869 1977

FERR A B INEFHIEEE KA =X
A5 5.00% (20234F : 5.00%) °

MEHERBEYABITHE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to liabilities were 5.00% (2023: 5.00%).
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26. RAREERMEE

H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT
202445 20234
2024 2023
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JETE G Authorised:
5,000,000,000f% A% E{E 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
0.1 TH) B R HK$0.1 each 500,000 500,000
BEEITRER - Issued and fully paid:
1,946,314,108f F R EE  1,946,314,108 ordinary shares of
0.1 TTH B R HK$0.1 each 194,631 194,631

AEEERERNEELREAEE
RIS B S - BB B RIS T
2% P T AR ER RS E R A
# -

AEBRERBRLHIREERSHE
AREBEEEARGER  ARBLHEN
SLEV B T AR R B E A R B
HETHARB -RBTHTAABELE
B AEBETRSHEREXNMN  #
T MERD  BEMER &
ERABEBALEEENRDER

5 B L IR SRS b K B BT
K o L AR B DA A A
& o B B BRI AR R o

2N 5% [ 4 455 2 Bt S P B T B i — SINED
BAREBREVRAED2S%HE 1T
B RRFTHRE °

2023/24 Annual Report 3R

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion
to risk. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the payment of dividends, issue new shares,
buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
shareholders equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total share equity divided by total assets. Total share
equity comprises share capital and other reserves.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for
the Group is in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange, it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of the issued shares.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

26. RANEERMERE ()

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

AEBEBAFURMIKEROBEE
EEENEARDESENRE -
ERTTIERBRERE
2FNHEF25%K R EE o 120244
3A31H @ #8i825% (20234 : BB
25%) KR ARRIFE -

WHRAT

The Group receives a report from the share
7 4R registrars monthly on substantial share interests
showing the non-public float and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% Ilimit
throughout the year. As at 31 March 2024, over

25% (2023: over 25%) of the shares were in public

hands.

27. R NTB M E MR R R FEEE R 27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) =2THBMRR K

(a) Statement of financial position of the

Company
202445 20234
2024 2023
M 5T THET F& T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
KRB R RIKE Investment in subsidiaries - -
REBEE Current assets
RITRIRE 4565 Bank and cash balances 170 174
REBEE Current liabilities
fEstEH Accruals 15 15
EEFE Net assets 155 159
BEXR#HE Capital and reserves
A& 2 Share capital 26 194,631 194,631
ki Reserves 27(b) (194,476) (194,472)
AR Total equity 155 159
MR2024F6 A19H ¥ & = g #it Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June

e RANIEFAERRE

BEE
CHENG Hop Fai

BE

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

2024 and are signed on its behalf by:
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H = 2024 F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2024

27. KATBBRAREFEEZER 27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
€= RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) ARFREEEER (b) Reserve movement of the Company

R EE Raie BRERG 2ifFE a3t

Share
Share Capital option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total

(Bz286))  (Wat28mui)

(note 28(b)i)) ~ (note 28(b)ii)
T THL THL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

20225418 At 1 April 2022 88,794 113,143 2,720 (399,124) (194,467)
FEEE Loss for the year - - - (5) (5)
BRELN Lapse of share option - = (186) 186 =

#R2023F3A318 R20235F4R18 At 31 March 2023 and

1 April 2023 88,794 113,143 2,534 (398,943) (194,472)
FEER Loss for the year - - - @) (4)
12024%3A318 At 31 March 2024 88,794 113,143 2,534 (398,947) (194,476)
28. f#1& 28. RESERVES

(a) xK£H (a) Group
rEEFENRBREZEEHFE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
HEReBERERAEMEEKEE movements therein are presented in the
RigEE=ZBEK - consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) FEHNHEEMNEN (b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) BREZE (i) Share premium

BRAGEEHEABBETRE Share premium represents premium arising
ENERETROELEN from the issue of shares at a price in
B-RAZERNERXA excess of their par value per share. The
REQGIFRRE)EH © application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda.
2023/24 Annual Report 3§ G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T
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H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

28. & (&)

28. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) REHMEEME N (F)

(i) BXHE
REBEE A2 H1992
FIOAMNEEEHAELN -
ERREARB /BRI B D
AR A 42 T {E T 31T 80 IR
REECMONER-

(i) E S #fE
EXFHEEREGREGINE
B R A B 15 R M E AW
PrEIMNEZF - ZEEHRIE
AR A B R R MY 5E4(0) P B
M & FTEURBIE -

29. BT

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a
result of the group reorganisation in
October 1992. It represents the difference
between the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of subsidiaries.

(iii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in
note 4(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

AR A F2010FE5 8108 £ 49 59 B8 I
#E T2l (1201051 3811) $2020F588
HJE W A2 A HK2020F8 A3H £
THRERFRG EEBRFEAZBG
Hsh AR 5T 20 (202051 8/ 62
2010518 - (2 E50 81 - BB
20105t 8 TS BRETMEME
BEAE - AT - RIF201051 B R E BT
M RITEA R EGEE R T ATT
- BB SF201051 2B B R BB
BAEXSHARAA ([BRXAT]) F
FHEMMA(TEWARA F17EH
&3 - BRIER 202051 2 M R AR B
BIE - BRI20205TEI 2 ARG ER
20308 A3H AL °

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme"”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 3 August
2020, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the ”2020 Scheme”, and, together with
the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”). No further share
options may be offered under the 2010 Scheme.
However, any outstanding share options granted
under the 2010 Scheme shall continue to be
exercisable subject to the rules of the 2010 Scheme
and the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the” Listing Rules”). Unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the rules of the 2020
Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall be valid and
effective until 3 August 2030.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
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The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to recognise the
commitments and contributions of the following
eligible participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards:

(@) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity"”);

(b) any advisor, consultant, professional, agent,
contractor, customer, provider of goods and/or
services, business or joint-venture partner of
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers eligible for the 2010 Scheme on the
basis of his or her contribution to the Group or
the Invested Entity (as the case may be); and

() any person whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers has contributed or will
contribute to the Group or to the Invested
Entity (as the case may be).
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
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(b) 3|~ BB RIAE T A M55
BERSHEENKEXRBBE
i 15 55 1 & BR 3R B =k #2159 B A
RAEBNRAER -

MN2024F3A31H * XA AR IEZ
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HEREBBERTRMDLA1.3% (2023
F:1.3%)
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The purpose of the 2020 Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to any full-time or
part-time employees, chief executives, officers or
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group, substantial shareholders
and any professional advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the business affairs, development and growth of the
Group as incentives or rewards to recognise and
acknowledge their contributions to the Group. The
2020 Scheme will provide the eligible participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives:

(a) to motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of
the Group; and

(b) to attract, retain or otherwise maintain an
on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group.

At 31 March 2024, the Company had 26,000,000
(2023: 26,000,000) share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 1.3% (2023: 1.3%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
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The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2020 Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 194,631,410 shares
(approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the time the 2020 Scheme was
established) unless further shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. The overall limit in the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Schemes shall not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Pursuant to each of the 2010 Scheme and the 2020
Scheme, each grant of options to any director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
must be approved by all independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted or to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of such grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company,
with the grantee(s), his associates and all core
connected persons (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company abstaining from voting in
favour.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
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Subject to the aforesaid, pursuant to each of the
2010 Scheme and the 2020 Scheme, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the
limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval
with such participant and his associate abstaining
from voting.

Options granted under the 2010 Scheme must be
accepted in writing within 30 days from the date of
offer. No consideration is payable on grant of
option. Pursuant to the 2020 Scheme, an option
shall be deemed to have been granted to the
grantee and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of
the offer for such option duly signed by the
grantee, together with a non-refundable remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company within 30 business days after the date
of offer.

The exercise price under the Schemes of the option
shares shall at least be the highest of (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; (ii) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer, which shall be a business day; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
granted to any participant by the Board at its
absolute discretion and subject to any conditions as
it may think fit. Save for this, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be achieved by
the grantee nor any minimum period for which a
share option must be held before a share option
can be exercised.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

REZFE BERATEESSM®
TE A0 388 A ) 5 ) P B A ] B R 1T 6
Pt EZHEAFEBA R AH
FET10F - WRFZI10F &K% — @

B AER -

TRIIEARE Z F5 8% 5 A9 B i
M BB N - LA KR2024F3H31H

A2023F3A31 HHIEREE :

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during a period
determined and notified by the Board of Directors
provided that such period shall be not more than 10

years commencing from the date of grant and
expiring on the last business day of such 10-year

period.

Details of movements in the share options granted
under the Schemes and the balances at 31 March

2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out below:

R2022% R2023%
4B18 REAXHMTE 2024F3A31R
2% BmAH TES BRITKEE tef K A7 68 55 I K17
Outstanding
Lapsed/ as at
Outstanding expired 31 March
Exercisable Exercise price as at during 2023 and
Participants Date of grant period per share 1 April 2022 the year 2024
(Hfzta) BT (Hiztb)
(note a) HK$ (note b)
g% 2017410238 2017F10A23B%
20254104221
Directors 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to
22 October 2025 0.177 26,000,000 - 26,000,000
EX/BRE(W#b) 201710238 2017108238 E
2025%10H228
Director/Consultant 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to
(note b) 22 October 2025 0.177 2,000,000 (2,000,000) -
TRERTTE
Exercisable at the end of the year 28,000,000 (2,000,000) 26,000,000
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29. lBIRAERH & (&) 29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Het - Notes:

(@) 2017410 A23H £ H # 8 AR 1 1 1% (@) The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the
i B EA 42 5 2 F{E A2,906,000 share options on 23 October 2017 was HK$2,906,000.
BT IR A B H30% N &K H B H 30% of total number of the share options were vested
2017F10A23B BB  30% R immediately on the date of grant, 23 October 2017.
2018 10H23H BB - H#40% RN 30% of total number of the share options were vested
2019%F10HA23B & & - A2 Al ik i on 23 October 2018 and the remaining 40% were
SERH B HAATKTHER0177ETT - vested on 23 October 2019. The closing price of the

Company'’s share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.177.

(b) TBIIEHITEFERE SR EMN201966 (b) Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William resigned as an INED and
R18H BT BR(EER - 202341 acted as a consultant with effect from 18 June 2019, he
R25R £ - passed away on 25th January 2023.

HE2024F3A31HIEFE  XEE The Group did not recognise the expenses for the

AR B AR BRI AR RE R SR AE ] year ended 31 March 2024 in relation to share

X (2023F &) c RBERN - K options granted by the Company (2023: HK$Nil).

EERERETERKEE - 8 £2024 No share options were exercised and granted for

FIANBUEFE  LEBREXX both years. No share option lapsed during the year

(20234 : 2,000,000/%) ° ended 31 March 2024 (2023: 2,000,000).

30. R K& A 5T & 30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

KNEE AR T & KA 5%A 58 18
SETEMHR EEIMELBREMER -
BUNEISARaHRABREABLE
1,5007C > £ & £22024F3A31H &
2023F3A3MHLEFEARN  AEEL
EAECEMARBID)E 18.34(2) E&FR
A AR R A IR A H KRR
U os 78 & 3K - £2024F3 A31H H
2023F3H31H - £SEEEB A AR
B R IR TS RS A R 108 UK 3R
(anEA) -

HBRAEEETELENMBAR
BREBECERIED)ESTE - AEBEFE
EERLBER T (10K 2 E M & =X
RAR) MESBIENEGERET
XN E#RSGE  BRETEMRS
SEE
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The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the MPF Scheme, contribution of which is
matched by employees. The maximum monthly
amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per
employee. During the years ended 31 March 2024
and 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions
under the MPF Scheme which may be used by the
Group to reduce existing level of contributions as
described in paragraph 18.34(2) of the Listing Rules.
No forfeited contributions were also available at 31
March 2024 and 2023 for the Group to reduce
contribution payables in future years, if applicable.

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong, pursuant to the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57, the Group has the obligation to pay
LSP to qualifying employees in Hong Kong under
certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers
or upon retirement), subject to a minimum of 5
years employment period.
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)
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Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the
Group to utilise the Group’s mandatory MPF
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP
payable to an employee (the “Offsetting
Arrangement').

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17
June 2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset the LSP. The Abolition will
officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., 1
May 2025). Separately, the Government of the
HKSAR is also expected to introduce a subsidy
scheme to assist employers for a period of 25 years
after the Transition Date on the LSP payable by
employers up to a certain amount per employee per
year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group's
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns, after the Transition Date
can continue to be applied to offset the
pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but are not
eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP
obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before
the Transition Date will be grandfathered and
calculated based on the Last monthly wages
immediately preceding the Transition Date and the
years of service up to that date. The Amendment
Ordinance has impact on the Group’s LSP liability
with respect to employees that participate in MPF
Scheme and the Group has accounted for the
offsetting mechanism and its abolition as disclosed
in Note 3(b) and Note 4.
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30. RIREBEAETE (48) 30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)
REBABNHNEHRKSEREE Movements in the present value of unfunded LSP
REEINT obligation in the current year were as follows:

20245 20234

2024 2023

FHET FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F )R BE AT & RS Opening unfunded obligation 2,200 2,200
7K HA AR 75 AR AR Current service cost 357 =
A BB AR Interest cost 43 _
FERABNHESE Closing unfunded obligation 2,600 2,200
AKEERE BIRIEKATF B ERF The current service cost and the net interest
BT A EBEREXNETEMERF - expense for the year are included in the employee

benefits expenses in profit or loss.
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

31. TEMBE QA
#H £2023%F K2024F3A31HMEE

MBATIZEIBWT : March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:
KERBER/  ALNAFBERARE
£ AR/ g BRTRANEE HEMLE TTER
Proportion of
Class of shares held/ nominal value of
Place of nominal value of issued issued share capital
Name incorporation/operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERRE
Directly held:
CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited AERARE/ TR gl 100% REERK
187,325,513% T
CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100% Investment holding
("BVI")/Hong Kong HK$187,325,513
FRERE -
Indirectly held:
CCC Investments (BV) Limited LERARE/ R LERIET 100% RERR
CCC Investments (BVI) Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100%  Investment holding
BNAERRHARAA B ERRI008T 100% REERRE
(BREEELR
10,0007 *
City Chiu Chow Management & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% Provision of management
Consultants Company Limited (Non-voting deferred services
HK$10,000)*
AMBEEBR AR B ERR1008T 100% H&EE
(ERZEELR
2,000,000 7z *
City Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000)*
EIRERARAT] R LRRI00ET 100% SEEE
(ERZRELR
20,000,000 72) *
Honcert Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$20,000,000)*
GV Australia Pty Ltd bl L@A%10,0008 T 100% MEZRE
GV Australia Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary AUD10,000 100% Property development

* o ERORERE R B R R R
REEEM  HFENRETE - BEE KR
BEREBFERL2EEMAOA - Bk
BERAREECRMDAARRBEERE
B 7 % IR % & A BR A 7] #94,000,0000%
ERREELERMDBINBALIES -

* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
and have no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up. These non-voting deferred
shares were indirectly held by the Company except for
4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of Honcert
Development Limited which were owned by outside
parties.
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H = 2024 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2024

32. FEBRTREBRME

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) METHELENEEBHER

TERFINAREREEDELN

Ho-METHELNEELEE
REREEKHRARRBGHERD
AEEGARERERTHRE
ABREREMNEIE -

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

R2023F FIEEX XAHE 20245
4A1H (HE11) ReEA =R 3A31H
Interest Payment of
1 April expenses lease 31 March
2023 (note 11)  Cash flows liabilities 2024
TERT TERT THERT TERT TERT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BN —BEEHIE (M iF24)
Amount due to a director (note 24) - - 26,500 - 26,500
MEBEWZ25)
Lease liabilities (note 25) 10,820 467 - (3,310) 1,977
10,820 467 26,500 (3,310) 34,477
12022%F MEFX XS 12023F
4A1H (Hizt11) BeEA =4 3A31H
Interest Payment of
expenses lease 31 March
1 April 2022 (note 11) Cash flows liabilities 2023
FTEL FTHEL THET THET TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEAEWE25)
Lease liabilities (note 25) 13,263 597 - (3,040) 10,820

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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32. mEHEREERMEE (B) 32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) AREERSREAE (b) Total cash outflow for leases
melRenERTAREESS Amounts included in the consolidated
BN TEIE : statement of cash flows for leases comprise the
following:

20244 20234
2024 2023
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REERSME Within operating cash flows 6,040 5,443
REEHEERE Within financing cash flows 2,843 2,443
8,883 7,886

ZESHEENTEERHR These amounts relate to the following:
20244 20234
2024 2023
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EfNHEE Lease rental paid 8,883 7,886

33. ZAEE

33.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

R2024F3A31H » A& B I £ T 7]

BERHABE(20235F : &) -

34. KEHERH

34.

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

FEBEEREBRA

AEBTFHETEBHASED AR
BHE CRRAENEEETS - AEE I
R T— A EFNRPEERE
B #) - PRA2024F3A318H HEHHEE
HEHMF1IMEENCHEEER

HENEHESHES AL -

2023/24 Annual Report 3R

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for restaurant, office and director’'s quarters. The
Group also entered into a long-term lease with 5
years lease term for a restaurant. As at 31 March
2024, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to
the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 19.
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35. BERS

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) RER XEEMBFERER
ARI(TBFADERETYWEA
FOBREIEE o NFE B F UEA
7% 54,320,000/ JT (20234 :
3,600,000 Jt) ° M202453 A
31 Bt AREBYWERER
¢/ EE 2 51,080,000 T
(20234 : 1,080,000/ 7T & 5t A
REBMERERS) - 120244
N2023F3A318 © EAHBFIRE
=1 7 € A360,000/% JT (20234 :
) o

& #| & Golden Toy Investments

Limited ([ Golden Toyl) # & & K

B2 R] * MGolden Toy BZEE

BITRAH—RE2EETELSHE

B ZEAENZmABEARART

MITESHE\BALLE FAPL

T BMAHLLTNEHIEL L

BENMBARARRREIZER DA

Kong Fai N Em AR A °

b) REAR AEERZREEXEER
~al ([ BA—EE=EY
¥ AFEXHUKBHNELA
900,000 7T (20234 : 900,000
BIT) e R20249F3A318 - it A
REBMERELRNTEERE A
150,000 7t (20234 : 150,000
BT ARDMERELRS) -
MR2024% }%2023%43H318 © I
EREMSBOETES -

S = Golden ToyWI 2 & WE A
E—J o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

(a)

During the year, the Group leased certain
properties for its restaurant operations from
Homley Development Limited (“Homley"”).
Rentals charged by Homley during the year
amounted to HK$4,320,000 (2023:
HK$3,600,000). At 31 March 2024, rental
deposit of HK$1,080,000 was included in
current property rental deposits (2023:
HK$1,080,000 included in current property
rental deposits). At 31 March 2024, accrued
rental payable to Homley of HK$360,000
(2023: HK$Nil).

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned
by a discretionary trust the objects of which
include Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak
Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are also executive
directors of the Company and beneficial
owners of Kong Fai, the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

During the year, the Group leased an unit of a
residential building from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”). Rental charged by
Hover City during the year amounted to
HK$900,000 (2023: HK$900,000). At 31 March
2024, rental deposit of HK$150,000 was
included in current property rental deposits
(2023: HK$150,000 included in current
property rental deposits). At 31 March 2024
and 2023, no accrued rental was payable to
Hover City.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
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During the year, the Group leased an office
from Sky Global Investments Limited (“Sky
Global”). Rentals charged by Sky Global during
the year amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2023:
HK$1,200,000). At 31 March 2024, rental
deposit of HK$241,000 was included in current
property rental deposits (2023: HK$241,000
was included in current property rental
deposits). At 31 March 2024 and 2023, no
accrued rental was payable to Sky Global.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group entered into
transactions with Hung Yick Metal Company
Limited (“Hung Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick
during the year amounted to HK$492,000
(2023: HK$273,000). At 31 March 2024,
receivable from Hung Yick was HK$40,000
(2023: HK$51,000).

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a
loan agreement with Ms Cheng Pak Lai Lily,
who is an executive director of the Company,
for a loan of HKD26,500,000 (including AUD
5,000,000 and HKD1,000,000). The amount
due to the director is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

The remuneration of directors, which are key

ERAEBHNHFM) AOT management personnel during the period was
as follows:

20244 20234

2024 2023

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FehEMETR Salaries and other benefits 2,620 2,700

IR AR AE FI B AR Retirement benefits cost 54 54

2,674 2,754
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Financial Summary

¥E RESULTS
BE3A31ALEE
Year ended 31 March
20204 20214 20224 20234 20245
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
FET TET FET FET TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
WA Revenue 67,413 37,173 114,637 45,181 49,549
B A% B B 1B Loss before tax (23,237) (8,517) (13,776) (21,586) (6,232)
FT B & Income tax expenses - (243) (304) (44) -
RN AR FE G 2 Loss for the year attributable to
FEEE owners of the Company (23,237)  (8,760) (14,080) (21,630)  (6,232)
LEHEaEs ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
MA3H831H
At 31 March
20204 20214 20224 20234 20245
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
FET TET TET FET THERT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEEE Total assets 106,168 81,595 53,470 31,503 49,795
BEAE Total liabilities (50,016) (33,129) (19,093) (18,938) (43,522)
T AR KA Total equity 56,152 48,466 34,377 12,565 6,273
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